
PUBLIC NOTICE: 

Home Forward 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

will meet on  
Tuesday, December 17, 2024 

At 5:30 pm 
Zoom Link Here: 

https://homeforward.zoom.us/j/89163859075?pwd=DnzhZcxAfP49
xfh4sfIeCqnQ6gmpb4.1 



 
 
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:  Community Partners 
 
 

From:  Ivory N. Mathews, Chief Executive  
           Officer 

 

 

Date: December 11, 2024 
 
 

Subject:  Home Forward Board of  
  Commissioners December 
           Meeting 
 

 
 
 

 
The Board of Commissioners of Home Forward will meet on Tuesday, December 17 at 
5:30 PM virtually using the Zoom platform.  The meeting will be accessible to the public via 
phone and electronic device. 
 
If you would like to provide public testimony or view the meeting, please use this link: 
https://homeforward.zoom.us/j/89163859075?pwd=DnzhZcxAfP49xfh4sfIeCqnQ6gmpb4
.1 
The commission meeting is open to the public.  
 
 
 
 
 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

1

https://homeforward.zoom.us/j/89163859075?pwd=DnzhZcxAfP49xfh4sfIeCqnQ6gmpb4.1
https://homeforward.zoom.us/j/89163859075?pwd=DnzhZcxAfP49xfh4sfIeCqnQ6gmpb4.1


 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

2



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

HOME FORWARD 
135 SW ASH STREET 
PORTLAND, OREGON 

VIA ZOOM 
https://homeforward.zoom.us/j/89163859075?pwd=DnzhZcxAfP49xfh4sfIeCqnQ6gmpb4.1 

DECEMBER 17, 2024, 5:30 PM 
AGENDA 

INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
General comments not pertaining to specific resolutions.  Any public comment regarding a 
specific resolution will be heard when the resolution is considered. 

MEETING MINUTES 

Topic 

Minutes of November 19, 2024 Board of Commissioners Virtual Meeting 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS 

Topic  Presenter 

REPORT Election of Officers for 2025 Matthew Gebhardt, Chair 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Following Reports and Resolutions: 

24-12 Topic Presenter/POC Phone # 

01 Authorize Execution of a Contract for  
Design-Build Services for Holgate  
House and Ruth Haefner Plaza  
Renovation Projects (85 Stories, Group 
8) 

Robert Dell 
Rocco DeBrodt 

503.802.8528 
503.802.8460 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

3

https://homeforward.zoom.us/j/89163859075?pwd=DnzhZcxAfP49xfh4sfIeCqnQ6gmpb4.1


02 Authorize Construction Contract  
Authority Increase for Celilo Court 

Juli Garvey 
Chris Hughson 

503.802.8457 
503.802.8483 

REPORTS AND RESOLUTIONS 

Following Reports and Resolutions: 

24-12 Topic Presenter/POC Phone # 

03 Authorize Property Purchase of the 
Cesar Apartments 

Jonathan Trutt 503.802.8507 

04 Authorize Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Kandy Sage 503.802.8585 

05 Authorize Home Forward Insurance 
Renewals 

Kandy Sage 
Jeff Klatke 

503.802.8585 
503.802.8531 

06 Recognize Dena Ford-Avery Ian Davie 503.802.8565 

THE NEXT MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Home Forward will continue to conduct board-related business as it is currently scheduled but 
will update the public on the venue or forum by which it occurs if the situation changes.  

The Board Work Sessions are quarterly with the next meeting on Thursday, February 6, 2025 
at Noon. The next Board of Commissioners meeting will be Tuesday, January 21, 2025 at 
5:30 PM. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
The Board of Commissioners of Home Forward may meet in Executive Session pursuant to 
ORS 192.660(2). Only representatives of the news media and designated staff are allowed to 
attend. News media and all other attendees are specifically directed not to disclose 
information that is the subject of the session.  No final decision will be made in the session. 

ADJOURN 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

4



 

 

 

 

MINUTES 

 

 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

5



 
 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MONTHLY MEETING 
HOME FORWARD 
HELD VIRTUALLY 

 135 SW Ash Street Portland, OR 97204 
November 19, 2024 

 
 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 
Chair Matthew Gebhardt, Vice Chair Jenny Kim, Chair Emeritus and Treasurer Damien 
Hall, Commissioners Jessy Ledesma, Breann Preston 
 
STAFF PRESENT  
Elise Anderson, April Berg, Ian Davie, Christina Dirks, Dena Ford-Avery, Juli Garvey, Biljana 
Jesic, Ivory Mathews, Kitty Miller, Jimmy Rattanasouk, Kandy Sage, Amanda Saul, 
Shannon Schmidt, Ian Slingerland, Aimee Smith, Celia Strauss, Jonathan Trutt, Linda 
Uppinghouse, Nikolai Ursin, Terren Wing 
 
LEGAL COUNSEL 
Sarah Stauffer Curtiss 
 
Chair Matthew Gebhardt convened the meeting of the Board of Commissioners at 5:30. 
 
Cathy Millis, resident at Dahlke Manor reported on the resident meeting and the delightful 
conversations. They continue to be swimming along and grateful for a place to live while 
the homeless contend with the rainy weather. There are still concerns at the property with 
unauthorized guests entering the building.  
 
Chair Matthew Gebhardt appreciated Millis’ participation, updates and we look forward to 
seeing Millis at the next meeting. 
 
Charles Robertson, resident and community builder at New Columbia thanked the board 
and staff for all the great work and appreciated being included in the board meeting.  
Robertson gave a shout out to Kitty Miller and Celia Strauss and said the organization is 
friendlier with Ivory Mathews at the helm.  
 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

6



Chair Matthew Gebhardt thanked Roberts for taking the time and acknowledged we have 
wonderful staff and appreciate them getting the recognition.  
 
MEETING MINUTES 
Minutes of the October 15, 2024 Board of Commissioners Work Session 
Chair Matthew Gebhardt requested a motion authorizing approval of the minutes for the 
October 15, 2024 Board of Commissioners Virtual Meeting. 
 
There being no discussion, Commissioner Breann Preston moved to approve the meeting 
minutes.  Chair Emeritus Damien Hall seconded the motion.  
 
The vote was as follows: 

 
Chair Matthew Gebhardt—Aye 
Vice Chair Jenny Kim—Aye 

 Chair Emeritus Damien Hall—Aye 
Commissioner Jessy Ledesma—Aye 
Commissioner Breann Preston—Aye 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
Resolution 24-11-01 Authorize Changes to Chapters 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 10, 15, 16, 17, 18, and 
20 of the Administrative Plan 
Commissioner Breann Preston said it would be helpful to have a summary page with an 
expanded view of the redlined changes, consolidating the number of pages to review in 
the future. Chair Matthew Gebhardt recognized all the work that went into documenting 
and coordinating the changes. 
 
There being no further discussion, Chair Emeritus Damien Hall moved to approve 
Resolution 24-11-01.  Vice Chair Jenny Kim seconded the motion.  
 
The vote was as follows: 

 
Chair Matthew Gebhardt—Aye 
Vice Chair Jenny Kim—Aye 

 Chair Emeritus Damien Hall—Aye 
Commissioner Jessy Ledesma—Aye 
Commissioner Breann Preston—Aye 

 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

7



RESOLUTIONS 
Resolution 24-11-02 Authorize Early Learning Center Tenant Improvement Amendment to 
Killingsworth Housing’s Construction Manager/General Contractor Contract with 
O’Neill/Walsh Community Builders 
Development Director Jonathan Trutt presented the resolution saying this is an exciting 
moment moving forward with the location of the early learning center classrooms.  Trutt 
described the location adjacent to PCC’s Workforce Center along with pictures. The 
ground floor center will be operated by the Native American Youth and Family Center 
(NAYA). In partnership, Home Forward will construct the space, and NAYA will be 
responsible for the tenant improvements of the unfinished classroom space with 
construction by O’Neill/Walsh.   
 
We are amending the contract because the original resolution did not include the 
construction costs or contingency associated with the ELC’s. With the completion of the 
design and bidding we are moving forward. We anticipate using a construction 
contingency through future contract amendments to address changes to the scope of 
work, unforeseen conditions, and building upgrades. Trutt noted that the proposed 
increase to the total construction cost amount was anticipated at the beginning of 
construction and is included in the current development budget. In closing, the resolution 
was reviewed by the READ Committee at their November meeting. 
 
Commissioner Breann Preston was happy to see the learning center on the campus with 
Vice Chair Jenny Kim agreeing. Adding, this will open doors for others to follow.  Chair 
Gebhardt acknowledged the hours of behind the scenes work that went on to build the 
relationship.  

 
There being no discussion, Chair Matthew Gebhardt requested a motion to approve 
Resolution 24-11-02. Commissioner Jessy Ledesma moved to adopt Resolutions 24-11-
02.  Commissioner Breann Preston seconded the motion.  
 
The vote was as follows: 

Chair Matthew Gebhardt—Aye 
Vice Chair Jenny Kim—Aye 

 Chair Emeritus Damien Hall—Aye 
Commissioner Jessy Ledesma—Aye 
Commissioner Breann Preston—Aye 

 
 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

8



There being no further business, Chair Matthew Gebhardt adjourned the meeting at 5:48 
PM. 
 
Celia M. Strauss 
Recorder, on behalf of 
Ivory N. Mathews, Secretary 
 
ADOPTED:  DECEMBER 17, 2024 
 
Attest:  Home Forward:  
 
 
________________________________  _______________________________ 
Ivory N. Mathews, Secretary   Matthew Gebhardt, Chair 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

9



 

 

 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

10



 
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
 

From:  Robert Dell, Project Manager   
 503.802.8528 
 
 Rocco DeBrodt, Project Manager 
 503.802.8460 
 
 April Berg, Assistant Director of 

Development  
 503-802.8326 

 

Date: December 17, 2024  
 
 

Subject:  Authorize Execution of a Contract 
for Design-Build Services for 
Holgate House and Ruth Haefner 
Plaza Renovation Projects (85 
Stories, Group 8) 
Resolution 24-12-01 

 

 
 
 

 
The Board of Commissioners is requested to authorize the execution of design-build services 
contracts with Walsh Construction Co. for the Holgate House and Ruth Haefner Plaza 
Renovation Projects (85 Stories, Group 8). 
 
These actions support Home Forward’s 2023-2026 Strategic Plan Goal to lead within the 
housing stability ecosystem and use our development expertise to advance innovative 
solutions that expand supply and address community needs. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Home Forward’s 85 Stories project began almost two decades ago, with a review of our 
public housing properties that determined the portfolio required a preservation initiative 
(Resolution 07-07-02).  The initiative came to be referred to as 85 Stories, a reference to the 
number of total floors in the combined properties initially selected for preservation.  
Beginning in 2015, groups of public housing properties were defined and shepherded 
through subsidy conversion, financing, and renovation processes.  The initiative has now 
reached Group 8, which includes the Holgate House and Ruth Haefner Plaza properties. 
 
Holgate House is a five-story public housing apartment community with 80 one-bedroom 
homes. This community serves seniors and persons with disabilities.  It is located in the 
Woodstock neighborhood of Southeast Portland, at 4601 SE Cesar Chavez Blvd.  The 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

11



scope for the Holgate House Renovation Project will likely include plumbing system 
replacements, elevator modernization, structural and masonry repairs, common-area 
upgrades, and upgrades to unit heating and finishes. 
 
Ruth Haefner Plaza is a four-story public housing apartment community with 73 one-
bedroom homes.  The community is located in Southwest Portland, at 6005 SW Beaverton-
Hillsdale Hwy, and is reserved for seniors and persons with disabilities.  The scope for the 
Ruth Haefner Plaza renovation project will likely include plumbing system replacements, 
elevator modernization, roof replacement, structural repairs, common area upgrades, and 
upgrades to unit heating and finishes. 
 
The ultimate scopes for each renovation project will be determined through the 
programming and design phases of the design-build process that this resolution will 
authorize.  The scope of work will be informed by third-party needs assessments as well as 
the selected architecture and engineering teams.  Residents of both buildings will be 
relocated within each building when work affects their units. 
 
Aside from resolutions relating more generally to the 85 Stories initiative, the Board has 
previously authorized exemptions from competitive bidding for Holgate House and Ruth 
Haefner Plaza (Resolution 17-02-03), which allows for these projects to take advantage of 
a design-build approach to the renovations.  
 
OVERVIEW 
In October 2024, Home Forward’s procurement department issued a Request for Proposals 
for design-build services for the Holgate House and Ruth Haefner Plaza Renovation Projects.  
A selection committee composed of Home Forward development staff reviewed the five 
responses submitted.  Evaluation criteria included: 

• Overall quality and experience of the proposed team. 
• The proposed team’s portfolio of work. 
• Approach to executing the work.  
• The team’s Economic Equity Plan 
• Cost 

 
The selection committee identified the proposal from Walsh Construction Co., with Holst 
Architecture leading the design team, as most qualified to undertake these projects.   
 
Though financed as a group, each property will be under separate contract.  Holgate 
House’s contract will start with an amount of $77,500.  Ruth Haefner Plaza’s will start with 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

12



an amount of $78,000.  These initial amounts will launch the projects’ Programming Phases, 
during which potential scopes are identified given preliminary costs.  Staff will return to the 
Board to authorize amendments for each project’s full Design Phase, which will settle the 
project scopes and secure permits.  Staff will also return to the Board to authorize 
amendments to cover Guaranteed Maximum Prices (GMPs) for each project’s construction.  
 
CONCLUSION 
Home Forward staff requests that the Board of Commissioners authorize execution of 
design-build contracts for the Holgate House and Ruth Haefner Plaza Renovation Projects. 
 
Staff presented the content of this resolution to the Real Estate and Development (READ) 
Committee at its December 06, 2024, meeting. 
 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

13



  
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 24-12-01 
 

RESOLUTION 24-12-01 AUTHORIZES THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR HER 
DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE CONTRACTS WITH WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO. FOR 
DESIGN-BUILD SERVICES FOR THE HOLGATE HOUSE AND RUTH HAEFNER PLAZA 
RENOVATION PROJECTS 
 
WHEREAS, the Contract Review Board of Home Forward previously adopted findings and 
granted an exemption from competitive bidding for the Holgate House and Ruth Haefner 
Plaza Renovation Projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, Home Forward undertook a formal competitive process for procuring design-
build services for the Holgate House and Ruth Haefner Plaza Renovation Projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, Walsh Construction Co. was identified as the most advantageous proposer by 
the selection committee; and  
 
WHEREAS, the contracts will be undertaken in phases, with programming the initial phase 
and future phases (design and construction) authorized by contract amendments; and 
 
WHEREAS, Home Forward identifies significantly important contracts to be presented to the 
Board of Commissioners; and 
 
WHEREAS, prior to financial closing, Home Forward’s line of credit will be used to pay for 
the Holgate House and Ruth Haefner Plaza Renovation Projects’ design services and other 
pre-development expenses; and 
 
WHEREAS, at financial closing, Home Forward’s line of credit will be reimbursed for the 
Holgate House and Ruth Haefner Plaza Renovation Projects’ design and other pre-
development expenses. 
 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

14



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of Home Forward 
hereby authorizes the Chief Executive Officer, or her designee, to execute contracts with 
Walsh Construction Co. in the amount of $77,500 for design-build services for the Holgate 
House Renovation Project and $78,000 for design-build services for the Ruth Haefner Plaza 
Renovation Project; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that if necessary, the Board of Commissioners of 
Home Forward authorizes the utilization of Home Forward’s line of credit to pay design-build 
and related costs during the predevelopment of the Holgate House and Ruth Haefner Plaza 
Renovation Projects.  
 
ADOPTED:  DECEMBER 17, 2024 
 
Attest:  Home Forward:  
   
   
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Ivory N. Mathews, Secretary    Matthew Gebhardt, Chair 
 
 
 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

15



 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
 

From:  Juli Garvey  
 Director of Asset Management 
 503.802.8457 
 
 Chris Hughson, Asset Manager  
 Asset Management  
 503.802.8483 

 

Date: December 17, 2024 
 
 

Subject:  Construction Contract Authority 
Increase for Celilo Court  

 Resolution 24-12-02 
 
 
 

 
 
The Board of Commissioners is requested to authorize the Chief Executive Officer or her 
designee to approve: 
 

• Additional construction expenditures authority for Celilo Court above the original 
contract amount of $887,793. The requested authorization will increase 
construction expenditures to $1,600,000. 
 

This action supports Home Forward’s 2023-2026 Strategic Plan Goal to lead within the 
housing stability ecosystem and use our development expertise to advance innovative 
solutions that expand supply and address community needs. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Celilo Court is a public housing apartment community with 28 two and three-bedroom 
townhomes, including two that have physical accommodations for accessibility. It has 
been undergoing a series of improvements to address site security concerns, caused by a 
previous lack of lighting and fencing. These improvements include new site lighting, a new 
precast wall and new ornamental fencing with vehicle and pedestrian gates. 
 
No previous board action was required for Celilo Court’s site improvements since the 
original contract was for $887,793.00 (C3026) – i.e. below the Board-delegated 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

16



contracting authority for the Chief Executive Officer. Subsequently, change orders have 
caused the improvements’ cost to increase above the $500,000 contract amendment 
threshold requiring board approval.  
 
OVERVIEW 
To pay for project completion, Home Forward will need to increase our construction 
expenditures for Celilo Court to $1,600,000. The increase of expenditures is due to 
unforeseen site conditions, city requirements, and electrical issues, specifically: 
 

• Labor and material cost escalation resulting from the pandemic 
• Vehicle gate and site vandalism 
• Unforseen conditions from existing underground utilities 
• Project extension due to storm/weather events 

 
Home Forward staff met with the contractor on November 21st and are confident that the 
additional construction expenditure requested is sufficient to complete Celilo Court’s 
improvements. Home Forward resources will pay for these additional construction costs.  
 
CONCLUSION 
Home Forward staff requests that the Board of Commissioners approve the attached 
resolution increasing Celilo Court’s construction contract to an amount not-to-exceed 
$1,600,000. 
 
The Real Estate and Development (READ) Committee of Home Forward’s Board of 
Commissioners reviewed a draft of this resolution at its December 6, 2024 meeting. 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

17



 
 

 
RESOLUTION 24-12-02 

 
RESOLUTION 24-12-02 AUTHORIZES THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR HER 
DESIGNEE TO INCREASE CONSTRUCTION EXPENDITURES FOR CELILO COURT TO 
$1,600,000 
 
WHEREAS, the Home Forward Board of Commissioners previously authorized the 
execution of a contract with Bacharach Construction for $887,793.00 for improvements to 
Celilo Court; 
 
WHEREAS, unforeseen site conditions, city requirements, and electrical issues at Celilo 
Court require additional construction expenditure authorization to pay for the completion of 
its improvements;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of Home 
Forward hereby authorizes the Chief Executive Officer, or her designee, to increase the 
amount of the Bacharach Construction contract for Celilo Court’s improvements to 
$1,600,000. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Home Forward ratifies 
and affirms any prior actions taken in furtherance of the foregoing resolution.  
 
ADOPTED:  December 17, 2024 
 
Attest:  Home Forward:  
   
 
   
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Ivory N. Mathews, Secretary    Matthew Gebhardt, Chair 
 
 
 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

18



 

 

 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

 

 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

19



 
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
 

From:  Jonathan Trutt 
 Director of Development 
 503.802.8507 
 

 

Date: December 17, 2024 
 
 

Subject:  Authorize Purchase of the Cesar 
Apartments  
Resolution 24-12-03

 
 
 
 

The Board of Commissioners is requested to authorize the purchase of the Cesar 
Apartments. The purchase price is $12,580,000 ($268,660 per unit). 
 
This action supports Home Forward’s 2023-2026 Strategic Plan Goal to lead within the 
housing stability ecosystem and use our development expertise to advance innovative 
solutions that expand supply and address community needs. 
 
BACKGROUND 
For the past 18 months, Development has been working to acquire recently-built, market-
rate apartment buildings and convert them into affordable housing. This effort ties to the 
following Strategic Plan Strategies: 
 

• Acquire at least two market rate properties and phase in rent and income 
restrictions without utilizing Low Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC). 

• Explore additional 100% Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) new construction. 
 
These strategies respond to three factors: 
 

1) 4% LIHTCs—the life blood of Home Forward’s development pipeline—have 
become scarce in recent years in the state of Oregon. Until 2022, 4% LIHTCs were 
freely available. Now projects seeking 4% LIHTCs face a funding bottleneck, which 
causes delays and higher costs. 

2) The legislature provided record levels of state affordable housing funding in the last 
legislative session, the vast majority of which is typically paired with 4% LIHTCs. 

3) Low purchase prices due to a mix of increased interest rates and decreased 
institutional real estate investment in Portland. Relatively new apartments buildings 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

20



are selling for far less than what they would cost Home Forward to design and build 
from scratch. 

 
Against this backdrop, Home Forward signed a purchase contract for the Cesar 
Apartments in August 2024. The Cesar Apartments is located at 1604 SE Cesar Chavez 
Boulevard in Portland, just South of Hawthorne Street. It opened in August 2023. It has 28 
studios, 15 one-bedroom apartments and four two-bedroom apartments. The building 
also has a property management office, community space, and flexible spaces that can be 
utilized for the delivery of resident and supportive services. 
 
OVERVIEW 
Suitability for Purchase 
Home Forward Development staff has commissioned and reviewed inspections of the 
Cesar Apartments’ units, windows and siding, roof, and mechanical systems. 
Development Staff concluded that the Cesar Apartments were well-designed and 
constructed. Asset Management and Property Management staff also had the opportunity 
to tour the Cesar and assess the quality of its design and construction.   
 
Permanent Supportive Housing (“PSH”) Conversion 
Based on conversations between multiple departments—Development, Community 
Services, Property Management, Asset Management, Homeless Initiatives and Supportive 
Housing—Home Forward plans to convert the Cesar Apartments into PSH for adults 
referred via the Joint Office of Homeless Services (JOHS). PSH conversion will require 
minimal modifications to the building. Like other 100% PSH properties—The Bud Clark 
Commons, the Hattie Redmond, Tukwila Springs—Home Forward will property manage 
the Cesar Apartments. Conversations continue with JOHS about selecting a supportive 
services partner. 
 
Capital Funding  
Capital funding for the Cesar Apartments’ acquisition and conversion to PSH will come 
from two sources: the Portland Housing Bureau (PHB) and Oregon Housing and 
Community Services (OHCS).  
 
PHB will provide $9 million, and its money will be available for acquisition in December 
2024. OHCS will provide the balance of acquisition and conversion costs. Its funding will 
become available post-acquisition upon certification of residents’ income eligibility. Home 
Forward will therefore use its line of credit as a short-term acquisition financing source, 
which OHCS funding will repay. Home Forward does not anticipate investing any of its 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

21



development resources in the Cesar Apartments on a long-term or permanent basis. 
 
Operational Funding 
The Joint Office of Homeless Services has committed rental assistance for all 47 
apartments through its Regional Long-Term Rent Assistance (RLRA) program and 
supportive services of up to $17,500 per household per year. Home Forward is also 
exploring project-basing its Foster Youth to Independence (FYI) vouchers at the Cesar 
Apartments as a source of rental assistance. 
 
Transition Planning 
Home Forward anticipates that the Cesar Apartments will begin accepting referrals from 
JOHS approximately 6 months after acquisition. We will communicate the upcoming 
changes to the building’s current residents in writing and in-person immediately after 
acquisition. 
 
A key component of the Cesar’s transition into PSH is that Home Forward will not compel 
the relocation of any existing Cesar tenants in conjunction with its conversion into 
permanent supportive housing. Apartments will convert to permanent supportive housing 
as they become vacant and are leased to households referred to the Cesar via JOHS.  
Given the change in building population, Home Forward anticipates that the majority of 
existing residents will want to move. Home Forward will facilitate these voluntary moves by: 
 

• Assuming that the Cesar’s conversion to PSH effectively triggers Portland’s 
Mandatory Renter Relocation Assistance program. 

• For households who opt to relocate within one year of the acquisition, 
supplementing the maximum Mandatory Renter Relocation Assistance 
payments by bedroom size by 50%. This would lead to the following payments 
per unit size: 

o Studio:  $4,350 
o One-Bedroom:  $4,950 
o Two-Bedroom:  $6,300 

• Providing all current residents with: 
o The opportunity to break their current leases at any point. 
o Relocation assistance payments as described above. 
o Information on nearby Home Forward properties.  
o Free assistance from Home Forward relocation staff for households with 

rent assistance vouchers and persons with disabilities. This assistance 
would be tailored to individual needs—e.g. help identifying a new home, 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

22



assistance packing and unpacking, hiring and coordinating movers. 
 
CONCLUSION 
Home Forward staff requests that the Board of Commissioners approve Resolution 24-12-
03 to authorize the purchase of the Cesar Apartments. 
 
The Real Estate and Development (READ) Committee of Home Forward’s Board reviewed 
a draft of this resolution at its November 1, 2024 meeting.

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

23



 
 

RESOLUTION 22-03-0 
RESOLUTION 24-12-03 

 
RESOLUTION 24-12-03 AUTHORIZES THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF 
DOCUMENTS AND UTILIZATION OF HOME FORWARD’S LINE OF CREDIT TO 
PURCHASE THE CESAR APARTMENTS FOR A PURCHASE PRICE OF $12,580,000 
 
WHEREAS, Home Forward is a public body corporate and politic of the State of Oregon 
and is empowered by ORS 456.005 to 456.725 to purchase any real property and to 
accept advances, loans or grants or any other form of financial assistance from any source 
public or private for the purpose of carrying out a housing project; and 
 
WHEREAS, Home Forward seeks to encourage the provision of affordable housing for 
persons with low-income persons residing in Multnomah County; and  
 
WHEREAS, Home Forward has the opportunity to purchase the Cesar Apartments, a 
market-rate apartment building located at 1604 SE Cesar E. Chavez Boulevard in 
Portland, Oregon, and convert it into Permanent Support Housing; and  
 
WHEREAS, Home Forward staff has completed its due diligence for the Cesar Apartments 
and concluded that it is well-built and a suitable addition to our real estate portfolio; 
 
WHEREAS, Home Forward’s purchase of the Cesar Apartments will provide an 
opportunity to immediately house persons with low incomes in a location that is well suited 
to provide access to jobs, transportation, grocery stores, and health services; and 
 
WHEREAS, Home Forward will utilize financing, including funds from its line of credit facility 
and funding from the Portland Housing Bureau (“PHB”) and Oregon Housing and 
Community Services (“OHCS”) to pay for the Cesar Apartments acquisition; 
 
WHEREAS, on-going rent assistance and supportive services from Metro, the City of 
Portland, and/or Multnomah County will enable the Cesar Apartments’ operation as 
Permanent Supportive Housing;  
 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

24



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of Home 
Forward authorizes Home Forward to purchase the Cesar Apartments for the price of 
$12,580,000; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of Home Forward 
authorizes Home Forward to utilize its line of credit as short-term financing in an amount 
not to exceed $6 million to purchase the Cesar Apartments, to be repaid by funding from 
Oregon Housing and Community Services and the Portland Housing Bureau;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of Home Forward 
authorizes Home Forward to enter into such agreements as are reasonably necessary for 
Home Forward to obtain a loan from PHB in the approximate amount of $9,000,000 (the 
“PHB Loan”), including but not limited to such contracts, loan agreements, promissory 
notes, deeds of trust, assignments, indemnities, guaranties, pledges, subordinations, 
security agreements, reserve account agreements, regulatory agreements, restrictive 
covenants and such other documents as may be deemed reasonable by the Chief 
Executive Officer, or her designee, with respect to the PHB Loan (the “PHB Loan 
Documents”); 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of Home Forward 
authorizes Home Forward to enter into such agreements as are reasonably necessary for 
Home Forward to obtain a loan from OHCS in the approximate amount of $6,000,000 (the 
“OHCS Loan”), including but not limited to such contracts, loan agreements, promissory 
notes, deeds of trust, assignments, indemnities, guaranties, pledges, subordinations, 
security agreements, reserve account agreements, regulatory agreements, restrictive 
covenants and such other documents as may be deemed reasonable by the Chief 
Executive Officer, or her designee, with respect to the PHB Loan (the “OHCS Loan 
Documents”); 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of Home Forward 
authorizes Home Forward to enter into such agreements as are reasonably necessary for 
operating subsidies, rental assistance, relocation assistance, property management, 
resident services, and any and all other services related to the operation and maintenance 
of Cesar Apartments as may be desirable (the “Project Documents”); 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners authorizes the Chief 
Executive Officer, or her designee, to take all actions and execute all documents necessary 
to obtain the financing for and to complete the purchase of the Cesar Apartments 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

25



including, without limitation, the Purchase and Sale Agreement and Receipt for Earnest 
Money, Assignment of Leases and Agreements, Bill of Sale, and Settlement Statements, 
the OHCS Loan Documents, the PHB Loan Documents and any Project Documents; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of Home Forward ratifies 
and affirms any prior actions taken in furtherance of the foregoing resolutions. 
 
ADOPTED:  DECEMBER 17, 2024 
 
Attest:  Home Forward:  
   
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Ivory N. Mathews, Secretary    Matthew Gebhardt, Chair 

 
 

 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

26



MEMORANDUM 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Kandy Sage, Chief Financial 
Officer 
503.802.8585 

Brian Rutzen, Manager of 
Analytics & Reporting 
503.802.8471 

Date: December 17, 2024 

Subject:  Authorize Fiscal Year 2025 Budget 
Resolution 24-12-04 

The Board of Commissioners is requested to authorize the Home Forward’s Fiscal Year (FY) 
2025 budget the period of January 1 to December 31, 2025. 

These actions support Home Forward’s 2023-2026 Strategi Plan goal to lead within the 
housing ecosystem by improving program utilization and diversifying funding streams. 

The budget is comprised of four main sections: 
A. Management Discussion (pages 1 to 6)

B. Agency level information
 Operating statement with Funding Flow Analysis (pages 7 to 8)
 Line Item Analysis and Budget Assumptions (pages 9 to 13)

C. Operating Group level information
 Operating information by Operating Group (pages 14 to 16)
 Budget Commentary (pages 17 to 46)

D. Additional Attachments (pages 47 to end of document)
 Includes information regarding Moving to Work (MTW) initiatives,

households served, MTW proration trends, funding vs costs trends,
headcount changes, and an acronym key.

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

27



Planned activities for the upcoming year include:  
• Total unduplicated households served is anticipated to be approximately 18,533 

households. 
 

• HCV will implement new payment standards at a minimum of 100% of 2024 Fair 
Market Rent for our 3 East County Zones for SRO, Studio, and 1-bedroom units,  
105% for SRO, Studio, and 1-bedroom units not in East County, and 110% for 2- 
bedroom and larger units in the rest of Multnomah County. Special Purpose 
Vouchers (EHV, Stability Vouchers, and VASH) will continue to have payment 
standards set at 120% of Fair Market Rent. 
 

• Occupancy is budgeted at forecasted levels by property and averages 98% for 
public housing units and 95% for the remainder of the portfolio. 
 

• Staffing levels are expected to increase 27 in full time equivalents to 392.5. Of the 
27 new positions, 7.9 FTE were added to the budget as mid-year additions in 2024 
and 19.1 FTE were added to next year’s budget as part of the add-back process. 

o Agency funded 342 
o Other legal entity funded 50.5 

 
Key financial highlights for the Fiscal Year 2025 budget include (numbers may differ slightly 
from source documents due to rounding): 

• Annual operating revenues are projected to be $297.9 million, an increase of 
$36.1 million driven primarily by an increase in funding in our locally funded 
long-term rent assistance program and an increase in developer fee earnings. 

o Dwelling rental is estimated to be $34.7 million, an increase of $6.9 
million from FY 2024. 

o HUD subsidies will provide over $188.9 million in funding, an estimated 
increase from FY 2024 of $15.3 million. 

o State, Local & Other grants are estimated to be $38.7 million, an increase 
of $7.9 million from FY 2024. 
 

• Annual operating expenses are projected to be $294.7, an increase of $32.7 
million driven primarily by increases in housing assistance payment standards 
for FY2025, the expansion of the regional long-term rent assistance program 
and other administrative expenses for security patrols and third-party property 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

28



management wages. 
o Housing assistance payments are estimated to be approximately $199.4 

million, an increase from FY 2024 of $28.2 million. 
o Other admin expense is expected to be approximately $17.7 million, an 

increase from FY 2024 of $1.4 million. 
 

• Earned developer fees are expected to total $15.3 million with $5.2 million in 
cash payments anticipated during this fiscal year. 
 

• Based on the impact of items above, Home Forward anticipates a net operating 
income for the year in the amount of $3.1 million. 

 
• Investment income is expected to yield $994 thousand along with $1.9 million in 

interest expense in FY 2025. 
 

• The combined impact yields a $2.2 million increase in change to net position 
after reserve funding. 

 
• Finally, agency results are converted from a generally accepted accounting 

principles (GAAP) format to a funding flow presentation to better present the 
funds available to support agency operations and reserves. 

 
This year’s budget was prepared with several estimates, the most significant being the level 
of federal funding available for the Housing Choice Voucher and Public Housing programs. 
At the time of budget approval, the federal government is operating under a continuing 
resolution. As such, estimates of the main federally funded programs are based on the best 
assumptions regarding current and historical funding levels. 

 
 
 
 

 
. 
 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

29



RESOLUTION 24-12-04 

RESOLUTION 24-12-04 AUTHORIZES APPROVING AND ADOPTING HOME 
FORWARD’S BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2025 

WHEREAS, Home Forward is committed to the maintaining high standards relating to the 
management of fiscal resources and the stewardship of public funds and assets; and 

WHEREAS, the staff of Home Forward has carefully and thoughtfully prepared the fiscal 
year 2025 budget to administer the programs and accomplish the objectives of the Agency 
for the period beginning January 1, 2025 and ending December 31, 2025; and 

WHEREAS, the budget identifies expected sources of revenue and funds held in reserves 
which are sufficient to cover planned expenditures for the fiscal year, and; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners has reviewed the budget and inquired with staff 
on the various aspects and components of the budget; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Commissioners of Home 
Forward approves and adopts the budget as submitted for the fiscal year ending 
December 31, 2025. 

ADOPTED:  DECEMBER 17, 2024 

Attest: Home Forward: 

________________________________ ______________________________ 
Ivory N. Mathews, Secretary  Matthew Gebhardt, Chair 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

30



 
 

FY25 Budget 
January 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

31



Table of Contents 
Management Discussion 1 

Operating Statement & Summary of Funding Flow 7 

Line Item Analysis & Assumptions 9 

Operating and Administrative Segment Review 14 

FY25 Operating Statement by Operating Group ......................................................................................................... 14 

FY25 Funding Flow Analysis By Operating Group ..................................................................................................... 15 

FY25 Staffing Summary by Operating Group ............................................................................................................. 16 

Budget Commentary – Rent Assistance ..................................................................................................................... 17 

Budget Commentary – Public Housing Portfolio ......................................................................................................... 23 

Budget Commentary – Affordable Housing Portfolio .................................................................................................. 26 

Budget Commentary – Asset Management ................................................................................................................ 28 

Budget Commentary – Property Management............................................................................................................ 29 

Budget Commentary – Safety ..................................................................................................................................... 32 

Budget Commentary – Integrated Facilities Services ................................................................................................. 34 

Budget Commentary – Development & Community Revitalization ............................................................................ 36 

Budget Commentary – Community Services .............................................................................................................. 41 

Budget Commentary – Administration......................................................................................................................... 44 

Budget Commentary – Real Estate Finance ............................................................................................................... 46 

Attachments 47 

Summary of Moving to Work Initiative Funds.............................................................................................................. 47 

FY25 Estimated Households Served by Category ...................................................................................................... 50 

FY25 Estimated Rent Assistance Households Served by Category .......................................................................... 51 

Subsidy Proration Trends ............................................................................................................................................ 52 

Cumulative Change in HCV Funding vs. Cumulative Change in Metro Area Apartment Rent .................................. 53 

FTE Change Comparison Schedule............................................................................................................................ 54 

Acronym Key................................................................................................................................................................ 57 

FY25 Operating Statement by Operating Group ......................................................................................................... 59 

FY25 Funding Flow Analysis by Operating Group ...................................................................................................... 60 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

32



Management Discussion 
This document presents the planned activities and financial budget for Home Forward for the twelve months 
beginning January 1, 2025, and ending December 31, 2025 (FY25). 

General Overview 

The Federal Housing Act of 1937 authorized the creation of public housing authorities. Utilizing the 1937 Federal 
Housing Act, the Portland City Council established Home Forward (at that time, the Housing Authority of Portland) as 
a municipal corporation under the Oregon Revised Statutes in December 1941. 

A nine-member Board of Commissioners governs Home Forward. Four appointments are recommended by the City 
of Portland, two by the City of Gresham, two by Multnomah County, and there is one resident commissioner. Home 
Forward is not financially dependent on nor considered a component unit of any of the above jurisdictions. The Board 
appoints the Chief Executive Officer and is responsible for the daily functioning of Home Forward. 

Home Forward is one of only 39 original public housing authorities in the country (out of more than 3,000) that had 
been selected by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and approved by Congress to 
participate in the Moving to Work (MTW) program. Moving to Work is a long-term federal pilot program designed to 
learn whether public housing authorities can serve their communities better with more local discretion over funding 
allocation, policies, and procedures. Home Forward has been operating as a Moving to Work agency since April 1, 
1999. The MTW designation allows for exemptions from specific federal requirements, enabling the merger of 
Housing Choice Voucher & administrative funds and Public Housing Operating & Capital Funds into a single fund, 
which allows Home Forward to create and implement innovative programs across its five main mission-based 
business lines. 

The main mission-based business lines are: 

• Real Estate Properties – Home Forward owns, manages, or is a partner in 103 properties with 6,678 units. Of 
these, 40 properties with 3,340 units are owned through tax credit partnerships, of which Home Forward is the 
minority owner. This document does not include the forecasted and budgeted results of these 40 tax credit 
properties. 

For public housing properties, revenue is generated from two primary sources: 1) HUD subsidies – based on a 
HUD-approved rate multiplied by the number of HUD-approved units multiplied by a proration rate, and 2) tenant 
revenue – rents collected from residents, which are driven by occupancy levels and by tenant income levels. 

For affordable housing properties, revenue is mainly generated by tenant rents and impacted by occupancy levels 
and contractually allowed affordable rental rates based on unit size. 

• Real Estate Services – includes Asset Management, Property Management, and Integrated Facilities Services 
for our affordable, master-leased, and public housing properties. 

As part of Home Forward's current strategic plan, the Asset Management group now provides long-term planning 
services to Home Forward's entire real estate portfolio. Asset Management generates fee income and uses cash 
flow generated from the real estate portfolio. The department also creates revenue from overseeing affordable 
properties our jurisdictional partners own. 

Home Forward’s Property Management group oversees the daily operations, compliance, and maintenance at 44 
properties. The group generates property management fees to cover costs and uses cash flow generated from 
the real estate portfolio. 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

33



Integrated Facilities Services is Home Forward’s specialized maintenance service, including electrical work, 
plumbing, pest control, and bulky waste hauling. Fees are earned based on billable services to Home Forward's 
real estate portfolio. 

• Rent Assistance – includes traditional and non-traditional rent assistance programs. Traditional programs 
include federally designed Housing Choice Vouchers, Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH), Family 
Unification Program (FUP) Vouchers, Single Room Occupancy/Moderate Rehabilitation (SRO/MOD), and Shelter 
Plus Care. Non-traditional rent assistance programs include locally developed short-, medium-, and long-term 
rent assistance and rent assistance combined with partner services. Home Forward provides rent assistance to 
over 16,000 households through these programs annually. These short-term initiatives began in FY20 and will 
continue into the FY25 fiscal year. 

The Housing Choice Voucher Program (Section 8) is the most extensive rent assistance program administered by 
Home Forward, with funding determined by vouchers authorized, voucher utilization, and proration rates. 

• Community Services – includes social and economic development programs for families and administration of 
community housing and service partnerships throughout Multnomah County. Programs include congregate 
supportive housing and family self-sufficiency programs. Cost reimbursement grants and property fees typically 
fund these programs. 

• Development – includes work on large-scale development projects such as The Hattie Redmond and Dekum 
Court, Metro Bond housing affordable housing developments, and improvement of our existing properties such as 
85 Stories (part of Home Forward’s public housing preservation initiative) using capital grants, local grants, and 
mainstream financing products. Revenue for this group is generated from developer fees, which may be earned in 
one reporting period but paid in a different period. 

Budget Principles 

The budget document provides greater context around where we are investing our resources to achieve the goals of 
ensuring the members of our community are housed. 

This document presents comparative budget information in a Generally Accepted Accounting Principle (GAAP) format 
and a Funding Flow (simplified operating cash basis) format. The reader must understand this distinction, as specific 
revenue and expense items may be recorded in one fiscal year. At the same time, the cash involved impacts a 
different fiscal year (such as development fee revenue) or has no cash impact (such as depreciation expense). 
Additionally, this document only presents the results of Home Forward's legal entity and does not include the budget 
of any blended or discretely presented units. 

The budget was created with several guiding principles: 

• Current-year activities will be funded with current-year revenue, business line reserves, allowable transfers from 
other programs, or agency-level reserves. In addition, any remaining funds will be assigned to reserves for 
specific purposes or general reserves to address funding volatility. 

• Because the life cycle of development projects spans several years, we monitor development performance to 
match that life cycle rather than using a single-year snapshot. 

• Revenues for the Housing Choice Voucher program and administration, Public Housing Operating Subsidy, and 
Public Housing Capital Grant are budgeted based on estimated calculations of rates and prorations as 
determined from a combination of 2024 actual funding rates, congressional funding bill proposals, and a Fair 
Market Rent survey for the Portland area. 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

34



• Funds using MTW flexibility are aligned with strategic initiatives. 

• Home Forward strives to meet the MTW requirement of serving substantially the same number of households as 
it would if it did not have MTW status. 

• Funds from selling real estate are generally dedicated to acquiring, developing, and preserving real estate assets. 

Budget Summary 

Key Activities and Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 25 

(Please note numbers may differ slightly from source documents due to rounding) 

Key activities planned for Fiscal Year 25 include: 

• Development will provide development services to 3000 Powell LP, Dekum 2 LP, Fairfield PSH LP, Killingsworth 
Housing LP, Grace Peck Terrace LP, Peaceful Villa Redevelopment, Troutdale Housing, and other capital 
projects. Development is projected to earn $15.3 million in developer fees from these projects. 

• Public Housing will serve 381 households in 9 public housing properties, with an expected occupancy of 98%. 
Public Housing units continue to decline as they convert to voucher-based units through the RAD/Section 18 
program. 

• Home Forward's Affordable Portfolio properties will serve 6,155 households, given the expected average 
occupancy rate of 97%. Home Forward-owned affordable properties are expected to serve 2,302 families, tax 
credit limited partnerships will serve 3,352 households, and master leased properties will serve 501 households. 

• In FY23, Home Forward opened a new HCV waitlist for the first time since FY16. Over 19,000 households 
applied, and 2,000 were selected and placed on the waiting list. Selection of these households to receive a 
Housing Choice Voucher will continue in FY25 and will exhaust the waitlist from 2023. A new waitlist opening, and 
waitlist pulls are planned for FY25. 

Financial highlights of the upcoming budget include: 

• Annual operating revenues are projected to be $298 million. This is mainly due to the following: 

o $15.3 million in developer fee revenue from Dekum 2 LP ($2.9 million), Goose Hollow ($500 
thousand), Gresham Civic Station ($600 thousand), Killingsworth Housing LP ($1.6 million), Peaceful 
Villa Redevelopment ($6.4 million), and Troutdale Housing LP ($3.3 million) projects. 

o Public Housing Operating Subsidy revenue of $5.0 million, including $42 thousand in Asset 
Repositing Fees, reflects an estimated proration of 95 percent. 

o HUD funding for Housing Choice Vouchers is projected to maintain a proration level of 100%. 

o Admin fees will increase by $1.2 million due to increased HUD proration and increased voucher 
awards. 

• Annual operating expenses are projected to be $295 million. This is mainly due to the following: 

o Of the $295 million operating expenses, $199 million represents rent assistance payments made 
directly to landlords on behalf of Home Forward participants. Home Forward's operating expenses 
would be $96 million without rent assistance payments. 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

35



o Personnel expenses will be $45.9 million for the upcoming budget year. 

o Other administrative expenses will be $17.7 million, primarily due to investment in Home Forward’s 
information technology infrastructure, including activity related to additional development within Yardi 
Voyager, property management fees of $1.8 million, and third-party payroll costs of $3.4 million. 

o Other tenant services expenses will be $4.7 million, primarily due to $895 thousand related to the 
Congregate Housing Services Program (CHSP) and $643 thousand for support services at Bud Clark 
Commons. 

o Other maintenance expenses will be $9.2 million due to significant maintenance projects at multiple 
affordable properties in FY25. 

• Based on the impact of the above items, operating income is projected to be $3.1 million. 

• Investment income is expected to yield $993 thousand and $1.9 million in interest expense. 

• The combined impact yields a $2.2 million increase in change to net position. 

Impact on Funding Flow 

As noted in the Budget Principles section, the agency presents its budget in a GAAP presentation and a funding flow 
format. The standard expectation of the funding flow is that Home Forward programs (excluding development) will 
break even for the fiscal year. Development activities will (at a minimum) break even throughout the life of its various 
projects. 

A funding flow summary by operating group is presented below: 

 

“Non-reserve funding flow adjustments” include add-backs for depreciation, offsets for allocated capital acquisitions 
and certain debt payments, property-level reserves, and increases/decreases related to the timing of affordable 
housing cash flows. 

"Unrestricted Cash from Current Operations" reflects excess cash flow from the Affordable and Tax Credit properties 
after the operating income and any applicable debt service. 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

36



“Reserve transfers in” to fund current activities reflect the inflow of reserve funds to cover the current year's expenses. 
This activity translates to a reduction of agency reserves. 

“Additions to reserves” reflect the transfer of remaining operating income into reserve accounts. Please note the 
bracketed number in this column does not represent an outflow of agency cash but rather an increase in agency 
reserves. 

Net reserves are dedicated to the following identified purposes: 

• $5.2 million of collected development fee revenue is transferred to reserves and is used to cover department 
operations and fund project costs that span multiple fiscal years. 

• To ensure adequate reserve levels for Home Forward, $1 million will be directed to a treasury reserve. 

Staffing Update 

Home Forward staff provide services funded with agency resources (Home Forward legal entity) and resources from 
other legal entities, such as several tax credit partnerships. The breakout by funding resource and the change in 
budgeted full-time equivalents (FTEs) is: 

Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs) by Funding Source 

 
FY24 

Budget 
FY25 

Budget 
Increase / 
(Decrease) 

Agency Funded 310.7 341.9 31.2 

Other Legal Entity Funded 54.7 50.5 (4.2) 

Total Agency-Managed Positions 365.4 392.4 27.0 

Numbers may be off slightly due to rounding. 

In total, full-time equivalent employees have increased by 34.2 FTE. While this budget reflects the FTEs of Home 
Forward, it does not include Home Forward paying the financial impact of the 54.7 FTE, but whose costs are reflected 
in the Tax Credit Portfolio. 

  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

37



Risks and Opportunities 

As is the case every year, the level of Congressional appropriations determines federal funding. While this funding 
has been volatile over the last five years, there is extreme uncertainty as to what level of investment the federal 
government will continue to provide. Given the passage of several continuing resolutions, the latest of which expires 
December 20, 2024, for Housing and Urban Development funding, and a lack of detailed information from the 
Congressional Appropriations bill, we have had to develop a budget with estimates of most of its major federal 
programs. The approach used was to base funding activity on preliminary congressional indicators (5% increase for 
HCV programs), and historical trends, use program reserves as needed, and prepare to implement budget revisions 
as soon as more accurate information is available. 

For development projects, there is always the risk of construction delays. Still, we are confident in the historical 
success of the Development team in monitoring and managing projects to mitigate this risk. Additionally, the 
Development team monitors new funding opportunities and strategies for financing affordable housing. 

In addition to funding volatility, there is the potential for a weather-related incident/natural disaster in any given year 
that could affect most agency properties. 

On behalf of our residents and program participants, Home Forward continues to seek opportunities to improve the 
housing and service delivery systems. There is the potential for new program development and implementation in any 
given year beyond the programs established with this budget. 

Conclusion 

For the Fiscal Year 2025, Home Forward will continue its efforts to transition from a traditional public housing platform 
to a more responsive affordable housing platform. Lastly, Home Forward will maintain ongoing operations while 
continuing foundational work to address historic and systemic racism. 

  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

38



Operating Statement & Summary of Funding Flow 
Operating Statement 

  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

39



Funding Flow Analysis 

 

  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

40



Line-Item Analysis & Assumptions 
Revenue 

Dwelling Rental | $34.7 million 

• Public Housing Portfolio will earn $1.0 million and continue to benefit from high occupancy rates, with an 
estimated offset of $25 thousand for vacancies.          

• Affordable Housing Portfolio will earn $33.5 million due to high occupancy rates, with estimated offsets of $1.9 
million for vacancies and $38 thousand in rent concessions. 

• There is a projected elimination of $5.0 million to reflect voucher holders living in our Affordable and Public 
Housing properties. 

• To ensure the continuation of affordable housing options throughout the community, Project-Based Vouchers will 
allow rent increases of up to 5% to be applied in FY25. 

Non-Dwelling Rental | $1.5 million 

• Non-dwelling rental includes commercial rents, payments from special needs master-leased properties, land 
lease revenue, cell tower revenue, and parking revenue. 

HUD Subsidies - Housing Assistance | $157.5 million 

• Due to expected continuing resolutions for a portion of the year, this funding is assumed to include a 5% funding 
increase and a projected proration level of 100.0%. 

• RAD funding will be $16.4 million for the 1,503 vouchers converted since FY19. 

HUD Subsidies - Administrative Fees | $16.3 million 

• Administrative Fees for HUD housing assistance are budgeted based on funding appropriations and assume 91% 
proration for FY25. 

HUD Subsidies - Public Housing | $5.0 million 

• Funding includes $42 thousand in Asset Repositioning Fees (ARF). ARF represents a temporary revenue stream 
(related to Section 18 conversions) to assist with converting Public Housing to Tenant Protection Vouchers. 

• This line item includes $369 thousand for carve-outs to support services and payment in lieu of taxes. 

• The budget assumes that the Operating Subsidy proration will be 95%, based on current year actuals. 

  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

41



Development Fee Revenue | $15.3 million 

• Accrued development fee revenue for the current year is projected for the following projects: 

Project 
Accrued Developer 

Fee Revenue 
(In thousands) 

Dekum Court Redevelopment $2,860  

Killingworth Housing LP 1,628 

Troutdale Housing LP 3,338 

Peaceful Villa Redevelopment 6,404 

Gresham Civic Station 600  

Goose Hollow  445 

St Francis Park LP 44 

Total $15,319  

State, Local & Other Grants | $38.7 million 

Grant 
FY24 Budget 

(In thousands) 
FY25 Budget 

(In thousands) 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

Short-Term Rent Assistance    

Multnomah County  5,360   9,241   3,881  

Homeless Family System of Care  3,909   5,564   1,655  

City of Portland  1,135   -     (1,135) 

State of Oregon  2   -     (2) 

PILOT Revenue  224   310   86  

Short-Term Rent Assistance Total  10,629   15,115   4,485  

Medicaid – CHSP  805   895   90  

Joint Office – Bud Clark Commons  643   2,332   1,689  

Long-Term Rent Assistance  18,261   20,344   2,083  

Metro  163   -     (163) 

Affordable Connectivity Outreach  332   -     (332) 

Teen Collaborative Grant  20   20   -    

Total  30,854   38,706   7,852  

    

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

42



Other Revenue | $17.1 million 

Other Revenue 
FY24 Budget 

(In thousands) 
FY25 Budget 

(In thousands) 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

Portability Revenue  7,542   10,719   3,177  

Integrated Facilities Services Fees  1,904   2,141   237  

Property-Related Income - Community Services  361   456   95  

Property-Related Income - Operations  935   911   (25) 

Property-Related Income - Management & General Partner Fees  1,514   1,787   272  

Home Forward Development Enterprises Contributions  451   -     (451) 

Other Revenue  910   1,042   131  

Fraud and Bad Debt Recovery  14   54   40  

Total  13,632   17,108   3,476  

    

Expense 

Housing Assistance Payments | $199.4 million 

• Includes Housing Assistance payments for the MTW Vouchers, RAD/Section 18 conversions, FUP Program, 
VASH program, Emergency Housing Vouchers, Single Room Occupancy (SRO) program, Shelter Plus Care, MIF 
Initiatives, Long-Term Rent Assistance, Port-in vouchers, and vouchers for those housed in our Affordable 
Portfolio. 

Personnel Expense | $45.9 million 

• Total full-time equivalents for agency-funded positions are budgeted to be 341.9. An additional 50.5 FTEs are 
funded directly from tax credit limited partnerships, and the expenses associated with these staff members are 
not included in this budget. Combined FTE is 392.4, a 27.0 FTE increase from the FY24 budget. The expenses 
below reflect only activity recorded for Home Forward properties. 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

43



Personnel Expense 
FY25 Budget 
(In millions) 

Administrative Personnel Expense  16.1  

Tenant Services Personnel Expense  6.2  

Program Expense  20.0  

Maintenance Personnel Expense  3.7  

Total  45.9  

• Anticipated compensation increases and higher PERS expenses are factored into the personnel expense budget. 

Other Administrative Expenses | $17.7 million 

• The Affordable Housing portfolio's other administrative expenses include outside payroll expenses, management 
fees, and security patrol contracts. 

• The Administration operating group has budgeted expenses of $2.5 million due to software and licensing fees, 
additional projects related to the Yardi upgrade, and projects related to diversity and equity. This includes several 
costs associated with the hybrid work model and other agency expenses. 

Other Tenant Services Expenses | $4.8 million 

• Tenant services expenses are projected to include $3.9 million in contracted resident services. 

Other Maintenance Expenses | $9.2 million 

• Public housing properties are expected to have $875 thousand in repairs and other maintenance activities. 

• Affordable housing properties are expected to have $5.0 million in repairs and other maintenance activities. 

• New Market West is projected to have $197 thousand planned repairs and ongoing maintenance. 

Utilities | $6.6 million 

• Sewer and water rates are projected to rise between 5% and 10%, while other rates continue to increase, 
including electric rates ranging from 5% to 15% and natural gas increasing by 15%. Local waste haulers will 
provide garbage and recycling services. 

Depreciation | $6.0 million 

• Depreciation represents the non-cash write-down of the properties' physical assets and reflects the units 
undergoing RAD/Section 18 and property conversions (listed in the Affordable Portfolio Commentary). 

General | $4.2 million 

• Insurance expenses will increase due to rising valuations and premium rates and are projected to be $2.9 million. 

• Based on historical debt, bad debt expense is projected to be $924 thousand. 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

44



Net Other Income (Expense) 

Investment Income | $933 thousand 

• Investment income is projected to increase based on higher interest rates than prior year estimates. 

Interest Expense | $1.9 million 

• Interest expense is primarily due to debt at Fairview Oaks & Woods (282 thousand), Lovejoy Station (219 
thousand), Gretchen Kafoury Commons (208 thousand), Cecelia (143 thousand), The Alexis (133 thousand), 
Hamilton West (119 thousand), St Francis (118 thousand), Rockwood Station (114 thousand). 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

45



Operating and Administrative Segment Review 
FY25 Operating Statement by Operating Group* 

 

 

*See attachments for a larger version of this table. Numbers may vary slightly due to rounding.  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

46



FY25 Funding Flow Analysis by Operating Group* 

 

* See attachments for a larger version of this table. Numbers may vary slightly due to rounding.  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

47



FY25 Staffing Summary by Operating Group 

 

 

 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

48



Budget Commentary – Rent Assistance 

Summary Budget Data FY24 Budget FY25 Budget 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

Operating Revenue  200,949,484   226,150,575   25,201,091  

Operating Expense  190,874,191   213,861,689   22,987,498  

Operating Income Before OH  10,075,293   12,288,886   2,213,593  

Allocated Overhead  4,172,734   4,811,274   638,540  

Operating Income After OH  5,902,559   7,477,612   1,575,053  

Funding Flow Activity  (5,902,559)  (7,477,612)  (1,575,053) 

Funding Required or (Contributed) for Current 
Agency Activities  (5,902,559)  (7,477,612)  (1,575,053) 

Total Budgeted FTE  99.0   109.0   10.0  

Rent Assistance Key Assumptions 

Housing Assistance Payments for the agency are projected to be $199.3 million, a $28.1 million increase from last 
year due to new voucher awards and payment standard increases. $2.5 million in housing assistance payments are 
related to Local Blended Subsidy payments to Home Forward consolidated properties and are eliminated in the 
consolidated operating statement. HAP expenses are broken down by individual program in the table below. 
Homeless Initiatives include Short-Term Rent Assistance (STRA) and Shelter Plus Care (SPC). 

Program Cost/Expenses 
Average 

Households 
Served 

Average Voucher 
Cost 

Total HAP 
Expenses 

MTW Vouchers 7,206  1,096.64 94,828,698 

Homeless Initiatives 2,660  1,229.46 23,694,167 

Long-Term Rent Assistance 1,162  1,464.96 20,427,430 

VASH 848  1,083.95 11,030,237 

Portability (Port-In) 676  1,253.23 10,166,170 

RAD 1,188  706.60 10,073,352 

FUP 231  1,914.03 5,305,689 

SRO/MOD RAD 382  1,114.75 5,109,996 

Section 18 TPV RAD 584  697.29 4,886,636 

Emergency Housing Vouchers 476  841.54 4,806,876 

Mainstream 214  1,451.45 3,727,332 

LBS 284  740.60 2,523,960 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

49



Program Cost/Expenses 
Average 

Households 
Served 

Average Voucher 
Cost 

Total HAP 
Expenses 

Portability (Port-Out) 135  1,165.56 1,888,200 

Stability Vouchers 77  438.46 405,141 

SRO/MOD 130  183.69 286,562 

MTW Funded Rent Assistance 20  361.65 86,796 

Flexible Rent Assistance N/A N/A 70,000 

Total HAP Expense 16,273   199,317,242 

Administrative fees for administering vouchers are $15.6 million, representing a $1.2 million increase from last year 
with higher proration and administrative fees for new vouchers. 

Rent Assistance has a net increase of 10 FTEs: 

• Increases include: 

o 1 Assistant Director of Housing Choice Voucher Program 

o 1 Housing Navigator 

o 1 Portability Specialist 

o 1 Program Manager 

o 1 Program Supervisor 

o 1 Program Supervisor 

o 1 Project Manager 

o 1 Rent Assistance Program Analyst 

o 1 Rent Assistance Program Specialist 

o 2 Rent Assistance Services Coordinator 

o 3 Rent Assistance Specialist 

o 1 Senior Housing Inspector 

• Decreases include:  

o 1 Portability Coordinator 

o 1 Project Manager 

o 1 Rent Assistance Services Coordinator Lead 

o 2 Special Program Coordinator - Limited Duration 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

50



Rent Assistance Major Programs/Initiatives/Activities and Estimated Budget Impact 

Housing Choice Vouchers - $152.4 million 

• The Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program is the federal government’s major program for assisting very low-
income families, seniors, and people with disabilities to afford decent, safe, and sanitary housing in the private 
market. Since housing assistance is provided on the family's or individual's behalf, participants search for housing 
in the private market, including single-family homes, townhouses, and apartments. Home Forward administers 
several distinct HCV programs: 

o Moving to Work (MTW) Vouchers - $94.8 million 

Home Forward will utilize 7,206 Moving to Work Vouchers. 

Home Forward opened the Housing Choice Voucher waitlist during the fiscal year 2024 after depleting 
the existing waitlist. The new waitlist additions will be pulled starting in 2025, and leasing will begin in 
early 2025. These adjustments will result in an incremental increase in housing assistance payments. 
Home Forward anticipates a utilization of 94.4% for the FY25 year. 

Tenant-based attrition (vouchers returned) is projected to be 24 monthly vouchers. The $11.4 million in 
program expense is a $45 thousand increase due to increased utilization, waitlist pulls, and projected rent 
increases. 

o RAD - $20.1 million 

Home Forward will utilize 1,188 Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) vouchers – prior Public Housing 
buildings that converted to a Project-Based Voucher subsidy under the HCV program. Converting 
buildings and units to an HCV subsidy allows the units to receive an HCV admin fee and converts the 
subsidy to fall under the HCV program. 

o Portability (Port-In) - $10.2 million 

Portability, a significant component of the Housing Choice Voucher program, allows voucher holders to 
move to other areas where Public Housing Agencies operate an HCV program. There are two types of 
portability: port-in, where a household moves to Home Forward’s jurisdiction, and port-out, where a Home 
Forward participant moves to another PHA’s jurisdiction. 

Under port-in regulations, Home Forward is defined as the receiving housing authority and receives 
households from the initial housing authority. The receiving housing authority can bill expenses, both 
housing assistance payments and a prorated administrative fee, to the initial housing authority. 

Home Forward anticipates administering six new monthly port-in vouchers in FY25 for an average of 676 
vouchers. Home Forward exercises portability billing and receives reimbursement for HAP and admin fee 
expenses from the initial housing authority for port-in vouchers. 

o VASH - $11.0 million 

Home Forward will utilize 848 VASH Vouchers in partnership with the Department of Veterans Affairs. 
Utilization of these vouchers is anticipated to be 81.2%. 

o SRO/MOD RAD - $5.1 million 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

51



Home Forward will utilize 382 RAD vouchers converted from former single-room occupancy/moderate 
rehabilitation (SRO/MOD) properties owned by community service providers. The properties' conversion 
allows the units to continue receiving the HCV admin fee. It converts the subsidy from funding under the 
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act to a Project-Based subsidy. 

The $5.1 million in program expense for this subset of RAD conversions is unchanged from the prior 
year. 

Section 18 TPV RAD - $4.9 million 

Home Forward will utilize 584 Section 18 tenant protection vouchers (TPV) – former Public Housing 
buildings converted under RAD. Converting Public Housing buildings to a tenant protection subsidy 
allows the units to receive an HCV admin fee and converts the subsidy to fall under the HCV program. 
Section 18 conversions also allow for the receipt of Asset Repositioning Fees (ARF). 

RAD Section 18 conversions have a budget impact of $4.9 million, unchanged from the prior year. 

o FUP - $5.3 million 

Home Forward will utilize 231 FUP Vouchers. Utilization of these vouchers is anticipated to be 94.7% as 
vouchers continue to be leased with little turnover. $5.3 million in FUP program expense is a $1.8 million 
increase from the prior year due to increased voucher utilization and per unit costs. 

o Portability (Port-Out) - $1.9 million 

Portability, a significant component of the Housing Choice Voucher program, allows voucher holders to 
move to other areas where Public Housing Agencies operate an HCV program. There are two types of 
portability: port-in, where a household moves to Home Forward’s jurisdiction, and port-out, where a Home 
Forward participant moves to another PHA’s jurisdiction. 

Under port-out regulations, Home Forward is defined as the initial housing authority, and households 
lease under the administration of the receiving housing authority. The receiving housing authority can bill 
expenses, both housing assistance payments and a prorated administrative fee, back to Home Forward. 

Port-out vouchers are projected to average 135 per month, with little changes in new port-outs each 
month. Most receiving housing authorities chose to bill Home Forward for vouchers leased in their 
jurisdiction under portability. 

o Mainstream - $3.7 million 

Home Forward will utilize 214 Mainstream Vouchers; utilization of these projected vouchers is projected 
to be 93.4% as Mainstream continues its lease-up process with the new voucher increment. 

The $3.7 million in program expenses is a $1.2 million increase from the prior year due to increased 
voucher utilization. 

o SRO/MOD - $287 thousand 

Coordinated under the Continuum of Care (CoC) Program, the SRO/MOD provides rental assistance in 
connection with the moderate rehabilitation of residential properties that contain upgraded single 
occupancy units for individuals who are homeless. The program is designed to move people into the 
permanent housing phase within the Continuum of Care. 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

52



Home Forward will utilize 130 SRO/MOD units that have not been converted under RAD. The $443 
thousand decrease in program expenses due to a RAD conversion. 

Homeless Initiatives - $23.7 million 

• In addition to federally funded HCV, Home Forward receives grant funding and collaborates with community 
service providers to offer Short-Term Rent Assistance (STRA). Serving approximately 500 households per month, 
STRA provides limited housing assistance to households in Multnomah County that are experiencing 
homelessness or are at risk of homelessness. Home Forward also manages Shelter Plus Care grants, serving 
approximately 495 households per month. Shelter Plus Care provides rent assistance and supportive services to 
people with disabilities who are experiencing homelessness. 

• The $23.7 million in program expenses is a $6.0 million increase from the prior year due to increased rent 
assistance costs and more households served. 

Moving to Work (MTW) Initiatives - $3.6 million 

• As a Moving to Work agency, Home Forward has the flexibility to operate various local programs to provide 
additional housing and services that align with our strategic plan. MTW Initiatives include Local Blended Subsidy 
and Flexible Rent Assistance, detailed above, among other programs such as: 

o Local Blended Subsidy (LBS) - $2.4 million 

LBS enhances funding for certain MTW Section 8 and RAD properties to subsidize units reserved for 
families earning 80% or below the area median income. These units may be new construction, 
rehabilitated, or existing housing. LBS has been utilized for 284 units at three properties, including 130 at 
Bud Clark Commons, 45 at Madrona Place, and 109 at Stephens Creek Crossing (64 at Stephens Creek 
North and 45 at Stephens Creek South). 

o Short-Term Rent Assistance (STRA) - $1.6 million 

Home Forward will provide short to medium-term rent assistance and leverage support at community 
schools to improve academic outcomes and housing stability. In combination with program-based 
assistance, Home Forward sets aside a pool of flexible rent assistance funds to serve targeted 
populations in partnership with one or more local service providers who ensure that the families have 
access to the supportive services or resources they need to be stable and successful. $1.5 million in 
funding is an unchanged from the prior year. 

o VASH Security Deposit - $42 thousand 

Home Forward offers security deposit assistance to participants leasing up with Veterans Affairs 
Supportive Housing (VASH) vouchers, pivotal support to finding housing for veterans, and increasing 
utilization of our VASH vouchers. $42 thousand in program expenses is a decrease of $51 thousand from 
the prior year. 

o Flexible Rent Assistance - $105 thousand 

Flexible rent assistance helps participants with various barriers to housing, including applications, bad 
debt, security deposits, expungement fees, and other financial assistance to aid the leasing process. 
Flexible rent assistance is paired with a Housing Search Advocates program that works with participants 
to: 1) develop individualized housing search plans which include addressing any housing barriers such as 
past evictions or bad credit; 2) meet directly with landlords and applicants/participants to navigate the 
application and leasing process, including filing appeals of denials and accommodations for special 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

53



needs; 3) stay informed of the available housing inventory and maintain strong landlord relationships; and 
4) help support households in understanding Home Forward's rules and processes. 

• The remaining MIF activity can be found in the Moving to Work Initiative Schedule in the attachments. Additional 
MIF expenses to support services and safety may be funded under Home Forward's approved single-fund 
flexibility and 2025 MTW Plan. 

  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

54



Budget Commentary – Public Housing Portfolio 

Summary Budget Data FY24 Budget FY25 Budget 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

Operating Revenue  5,926,439   5,776,720   (149,719) 

Operating Expense  4,171,798   3,325,428   (846,370) 

Operating Income Before OH  1,754,641   2,451,292   696,651  

Allocated Overhead  -     -     -    

Operating Income After OH  1,754,641   2,451,292   696,651  

Funding Flow Activity  (2,284,580)  (2,451,292)  (166,712) 

Funding Required or (Contributed) for Current 
Agency Activities  (2,284,580)  (2,451,292)  (166,712) 

Total Budgeted FTE  11.3   9.6   (1.7) 

The Public Housing Portfolio includes the budget activity for 8 traditional public housing properties and 9.6 property-
level staff. Home Forward's public housing stock provides an essential resource to the community by providing 
housing in 299 rentable units throughout Multnomah County. The unit count in Public Housing continues to decline as 
properties are converted to RAD and Section 18 funding. Property staff focus on the management and maintenance 
of the properties and work towards preserving the aging housing stock. 

In FY25, staff will continue integrating maintenance, property management, inspections, and services to improve 
efficiencies and reduce turnover time. 

Public Housing Key Assumptions 

Public Housing Portfolio Operating Subsidy Assumptions 

 
FY24 

Budget 
FY25 

Budget 

Physical Units in Public Housing Portfolio* 369 299 

Subsidized Units in Public Housing Portfolio 369 299 

Eligibility per Unit Per Month $1,532 $1,554 

Eligibility per Unit per Month (Excluding ARF)                  1,398  1,543 

Proration 95% 95% 

Proration per Unit per Month** $1,328  $1,282  

Total Subsidy $4,800,696  $4,601,592  
*As of January 1st, of the respective year. The new total will be 299 units post-conversion. 
**Less Carve-outs for PILOT, GOALS, and ARF. 

There are no expected RAD or Section 18 conversions in FY25; households served – occupancy is assumed at 98%. 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

55



Public Housing has a net decrease of 1.7 FTEs: 

o 0.5 Maintenance Generalist 

o 0.6 Maintenance Mechanic 

o 0.6 Property Manager 

Public Housing Major Revenue and Expense Items 

Operating Revenue is $5.8 million, down $150 thousand from FY24. 

• Dwelling Rental is $1.1 million, up $54 thousand due to increases in tenant rent portions. 

• HUD Subsidies for public housing are $4.6 million, a decrease of $199 thousand. 

• Non-dwelling rental is $82 thousand from commercial rental income, a decrease of $5 thousand. 

• Other revenue from laundry and other fees is $19 thousand, roughly flat from FY24. 

Operating Expenses are $3.3 million, down $846 thousand from FY24. RAD/Section 18 conversions removed $618 
thousand in expenses from the budget. This is offset by increased expenses at the remaining PH properties. The 
primary drivers of Operating Expenses are: 

• Housing Assistance Payments of $35,736. This is a new budget item for FY25 for utility reimbursement payments 
to residents at properties that pay for their own utilities. Historically, there have been some residents who pay 
their electric and power bills depending on the property. In the interest of treating all residents equally, Home 
Forward will begin reimbursing a set amount of the residents’ utility cost. 

• Administration is $355 thousand, for property management fees charged by the Property Management 
department. This is a decrease of $11 thousand. 

• Maintenance is $1.3 million, down $212 thousand. Maintenance includes $576 thousand in Maintenance 
Personnel Expenses and $759 thousand in Other Maintenance Expenses. The overall decrease in expense is 
due to the converting properties. 

• Program Expense is $472 thousand, a decrease of $100 thousand. Program expense covers personnel expenses 
and temporary help at properties. 

• Tenant Services are $76 thousand, a decrease of $91 thousand. 

• Utilities are $733 thousand, an increase of $77 thousand. 

• Depreciation has moved to the affordable and tax credit portfolios.   

• General expenses of $278 thousand in insurance are increased by $44 thousand. 

• All personnel expenses include planned compensation increases. 

Agency Overhead is charged through Property Management and is allocated to the Public Housing Portfolio through 
the property management fee. 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

56



Public Housing Funding Required for Current Agency Activities 

The Public Housing Portfolio provides $2.5 million in projected cash flow for agency and property needs. 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

57



Budget Commentary – Affordable Housing Portfolio 

Summary Budget Data FY24 Budget FY25 Budget 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

Operating Revenue  36,258,898   37,816,271   1,557,373  

Operating Expense  31,551,514   32,909,898   1,358,384  

Operating Income Before OH  4,707,385   4,906,373   198,988  

Allocated Overhead  -     -     -    

Operating Income After OH  4,707,385   4,906,373   198,988  

Funding Flow Activity  (7,391,054)  (5,950,732)  1,440,322  

Funding Required or (Contributed) for Current 
Agency Activities  (7,463,359)  (5,950,732)  1,512,627  

Total Budgeted FTE  16.5   6.7   (9.7) 

The Affordable Housing Portfolio comprises 55 properties with 2,803 units throughout Multnomah County, financed by 
private debt, public debt, and tax credit funding. 

The Affordable Housing Portfolio consists of non-public housing properties owned directly by Home Forward (23 
properties), 6 Limited Partnership properties, and 26 properties with master leases (with local service providers). 4 of 
the 6 partnership properties and 23 of the 26 master leased properties are managed by external property 
management companies. The FTE for this operating group is only 6.7 since much of the direct property management 
is done by external property management companies. For the externally managed properties, $5.3 million in 
personnel expenses are on the Home Forward financials, but the FTE is not included in the Home Forward head 
count. 

The Affordable Housing Portfolio significantly contributes revenue to the agency through cash flow from mature 
properties. The major challenge for the Affordable Housing Portfolio in the upcoming year is balancing the agency's 
need for cash flow while completing much-needed capital improvements at several aging sites. Rising insurance 
costs and continuing inflation will be other issues in the upcoming fiscal year. 

Affordable Housing Key Assumptions 

The average budgeted occupancy is 95%, consistent with actual property performance. 

Peaceful Villa underwent RAD conversion in late FY24, and will not be budgeted for FY25. 

The Cecelia and Woolsey properties at New Columbia are not included in the Affordable Portfolio in FY25. They will 
be budgeted as Tax Credit Limited Partnerships. 

Affordable Portfolio has a net decrease of 9.7 FTEs: 

o 0.6 Maintenance Generalist 

o 0.4 Maintenance Mechanic 

o 0.3 Project Manager 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

58



o 0.4 Property Manager 

o 8 Resident Specialist 

Affordable Housing Major Programs/Initiatives/Activities and Estimated Budget Impact 

Insurance premiums are projected to increase $70 thousand from FY24. This is an improvement from the previous 
year-over-year increase of $200 thousand. 

Additional resources in the amount of $82 thousand over FY24 is available to address security concerns at affordable 
properties. 

OHCS Prevention grants are being utilized to address capital maintenance projects at several properties. 

Affordable Housing Major Revenue and Expense Items 

Operating Revenues are budgeted to be $37.8 million, a $1.5 million increase from FY24. This is primarily driven by: 

• Dwelling Rental is projected to be $33.6 million, an increase of $1.8 million due to rent and higher occupancy at 
most properties. 

Operating Expenses are projected to be $32.9 million, a $1.4 million increase from the prior budget year. 

• Utilities are projected to be $5.7 million, an increase of $699 thousand from the previous budget. 

• Depreciation increases by $502 thousand to $5.9 million. 

• Management fees for third-party-managed properties are expected to be $1.3 million. 

• Third-party-managed properties have budgeted $5.3 million in payroll expenses. 

Affordable Housing Funding Required for Current Agency Activities 

• The Affordable Housing Portfolio recognizes and increase to net position of $6.8 million. 

  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

59



Budget Commentary – Asset Management 

Summary Budget Data FY24 Budget FY25 Budget 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

Operating Revenue  -     -     -    

Operating Expense  2,116,252   2,105,062   (11,190) 

Operating Income Before OH  (2,116,252)  (2,105,062)  11,190  

Allocated Overhead  2,205,019   2,493,469   288,450  

Operating Income After OH  (4,321,271)  (4,598,530)  (277,259) 

Funding Flow Activity  4,321,271   4,598,530   277,259  

Funding Required or (Contributed) for Current 
Agency Activities  4,321,271   4,598,530   277,259  

Total Budgeted FTE  10.4   12.6   2.1  

The Asset Management group is responsible for overseeing the performance of the entire Home Forward portfolio 
with the following breakdown. 

Portfolio 
Type Properties Units 

Public Housing 8 299 

Special Needs 26 470 

Affordable 29 2,569 

Tax Credit 40 3,340 

Total 103 6,678 
   

Asset Management Key Assumptions 

Asset Management FTE increased by 2.1 to 12.6 FTE. The increases include: 

o 1 Associate Asset Manager 

o 1 Preservation and Capital Needs Project Manager 

The Asset Management group also provides asset management services to properties owned by jurisdictional 
partners. 

Asset Management Funding Required for Current Agency Activities 

The Asset Management department will require $4.6 million to fully fund all planned operations, an increase of $277 
thousand from the prior budget year. 

  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

60



Budget Commentary – Property Management 

Summary Budget Data FY24 Budget FY25 Budget 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

Operating Revenue  3,522,826   3,008,358   (514,468) 

Operating Expense  5,066,162   5,120,864   54,702  

Operating Income Before OH  (1,543,336)  (2,112,506)  (569,170) 

Allocated Overhead  4,465,833   4,573,204   107,371  

Operating Income After OH  (6,009,169)  (6,685,710)  (676,541) 

Funding Flow Activity  6,000,687   6,685,710   685,023  

Funding Required or (Contributed) for Current 
Agency Activities  6,000,687   6,685,710   685,023  

Total Budgeted FTE  32.8   34.8   1.9  

Property Management is the service department for Home Forward's self-managed properties. The Property 
Management group oversees the compliance and maintenance at 44 properties. These properties provide housing for 
2,516 households and reflect the RAD/Section 18 conversions. 

Subsidy Type* Properties 

Public Housing 8 

Special Needs 3 

Tax Credit 29 

Affordable 4 

Total Properties Managed 44 

Overall, the Property Management group supervises 103.2 FTE. 50.5 FTE are budgeted in tax credit properties, and 
their operating results are excluded. The operating activity for the tax credit properties is reported outside of the 
Property Management budget, but their associated overhead costs are included in this department. Another 17.9 FTE 
are budgeted at the traditional public housing, affordable and special needs properties, and the associated costs are 
within their respective budget. The 34.8 FTE captured in this Property Management budget includes management, 
compliance, and centralized maintenance staff. 

  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

61



Property Management Key Assumptions 

FTEs – Property Management has a net increase of 1.9 FTE. 

• Increases include: 

o 1 Administrative Supervisor 

o 3 Maintenance Mechanic 

o 0.4 Property Accountant 

o 1 Support Specialist 

• Decreases include: 

o 0.3 Assistant Controller 

o 1 LT Maintenance Mechanic 

o 1 Onboarding and Training Coordinator 

o 1 Rent Assistance Specialist 

o 0.2 Site Manager 

Property Management Major Programs/Initiatives/Activities and Estimated Budget Impact 

Property Management will support the remaining public housing properties pending future RAD/Section 18 application 
conversions. There are eight properties remaining public housing properties that will undergo conversion in future 
years, however, there are no expected conversions for FY25. Peaceful Villa will be offline for the majority of FY25 to 
undergo work and is therefore not budgeted for FY25. 

Property Management Major Revenue and Expense Items 

Operating Revenue is $3.0 million, down $514 thousand from FY24 due to not receiving a contribution from HFDE as 
in FY24. The significant contributors to Operating Revenue are: 

• Public Housing HUD Subsidies of $169 thousand, which funds the Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT). 

• Other Revenue of $1.8 million includes property management fees, which are charged to properties instead of 
overhead. 

o Property Management fees are $1.8 million, down $108 thousand from FY24. 

 $266 thousand from the Public Housing Portfolio. 

 $117 thousand from the Affordable Housing Portfolio 

 $1.4 million from the Tax Credit Portfolio. 

• HUD Subsidies are $650 thousand from Rent Assistance Section 8 Admin. This administrative fee is earned on 
RAD conversions and will provide compliance on tax credit reviews. 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

62



• HUD Grants are $402 thousand from the Capital Fund Program grant. 

Operating Expense is $5.1 million, an increase of $55 thousand from FY24. The significant drivers of Operating 
Expenses are: 

• Administration Expenses are $1.5 million, a decrease of $103 thousand from FY24. 

o $1.0 million is in Administrative Personnel Expenses, a $205 thousand decrease due to staffing 
changes. 

o $477 thousand is in Other Admin Expenses, an increase of $102 thousand. 

• Program Expense is $2.5 million, which covers personnel expenses and temporary help. This amount is $25 
thousand higher than FY24. 

• Maintenance Expenses are $954 thousand, primarily in Maintenance Personnel Expenses for floating and on-call 
staff. This is an increase of $191 thousand. 

• General Expenses are $202 thousand, comprised mainly of PILOT expenses. 

Property Management Funding Required for Current Agency Activities 

The Property Management Department requires $6.7 million to fund all planned operations fully. This is an increase of 
$733 thousand from FY24. 

 

  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

63



Budget Commentary – Safety 

Summary Budget Data  FY24 Budget   FY25 Budget  
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

Operating Revenue  -     -     -    

Operating Expense  1,493,887   559,996   (933,891) 

Operating Income Before OH  (1,493,887)  (559,996)  933,891  

Allocated Overhead  225,813   65,033   (160,780) 

Operating Income After OH  (1,719,701)  (625,029)  1,094,672  

Funding Flow Activity  1,719,701   625,029   (1,094,672) 

Funding Required or (Contributed) for Current 
Agency Activities  1,719,701   625,029   (1,094,672) 

Total Budgeted FTE  9.3   2.5   (6.8) 

The Safety Department coordinates Home Forward’s property and staff safety awareness and training, implements 
new safety initiatives, and oversees the agency safety committee. The overarching objective is to utilize a proactive 
approach to reducing losses, providing safe and comfortable homes for residents and a safe and inviting workplace 
for employees. The Safety group identifies potential risks to properties and operations, develops strategies to mitigate 
risks, and delivers safety and compliance training to Home Forward staff. 

Safety Key Assumptions 

FTEs – Safety has a net decrease of 6.8 FTEs. 

• Increases include: 

o 0.2 Assistant Facilities Manager 

• Decreases include: 

o 5 Maintenance staff, all Limited Duration – these positions moved from Safety to Integrated Facility 
Services. 

o 2 Environmental and Emergency staff – these positions moved from Safety to the newly created 
Sustainability and Environmental Services group under Integrated Facilities Services. 

Safety Major Programs/Initiatives/Activities and Estimated Budget Impact 

Staff will conduct physical assessments of properties and make safety and training recommendations. This will 
include: 

• Tracking and ensuring compliance with various occupational safety laws, regulations, and hazardous materials. 

• Creating and implementing safety policies and an emergency management plan to guide agency departments 
and staff. 

• Environmental safety at properties such as safety assessments and inspections.  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

64



Safety Major Revenue and Expense Items 

Safety has no revenue for FY25. 

Operating Expenses are $560 thousand, a decrease of $934 thousand from FY24. The primary drivers of Operating 
Expenses are expected to be: 

• $424 thousand in Personnel Expenses, a decrease of $694 thousand due to changes in FTE noted above. 

• $111 thousand in Other Administrative Expenses, a decrease of $26 thousand from FY24. 

• $23 thousand for Other Maintenance Expenses, a decrease of $108 thousand due to the completion of large 
safety projects to install air conditioners and safety burners in units. 

Safety Funding Required for Current Agency Activities 

The Safety Department requires $625 thousand to fund all planned operations fully. 

  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

65



Budget Commentary – Integrated Facilities Services and Sustainability 

Summary Budget Data FY24 Budget FY25 Budget 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

Operating Revenue  1,903,601   2,140,549   236,948  

Operating Expense  1,642,941   2,456,713   813,772  

Operating Income Before OH  260,660   (316,165)  (576,825) 

Allocated Overhead  460,476   687,201   226,725  

Operating Income After OH  (199,816)  (1,003,365)  (803,549) 

Funding Flow Activity  199,816   1,003,365   803,549  

Funding Required or (Contributed) for Current 
Agency Activities  199,816   1,003,365   803,549  

Total Budgeted FTE 9.3  17.7  8.4 

Integrated Facilities Services is changing their department name from "Integrated Facilities Services and Safety" to 
"Integrated Facilities Services and Sustainability." This change reflects Home Forward’s commitment to sustainability 
and the strategic plan to address climate change. By focusing on sustainability, the aim is to reduce extreme weather 
events impact on our community. The department will continue to provide trades services including electrical work, 
plumbing, pest control, painting, and bulky waste hauling. Home Forward-managed properties utilize Integrated 
Facilities Services and Sustainability based on need and are billed for services provided. 

Integrated Facilities Services Key Assumptions 

FTEs – Integrated Facilities Services FTE increase 8.4 to 17.7 FTE. 

• Increases include: 

o 5 Maintenance staff, all Limited Duration – these positions moved from Safety to Integrated Facility 
Services. 

o 3 Environmental and Emergency staff – 2 of these positions moved from Safety to the newly created 
Sustainability and Environmental Services group under Integrated Facilities Services. A third part-
time position was created to assist with the new Sustainability and Environmental initiatives. 

• Decreases include: 

o 0.1 Maintenance Generalist 

o 0.2 Maintenance Services Manager 

Integrated Facilities Services Major Programs/Initiatives/Activities and Estimated Budget Impact 

Integrated Facilities Services and Sustainability (IFS) strives to operate as a self-sustaining business unit. Trades 
billing on an hourly basis provides services at rates that are competitive with market rates. 

• Renewed focus on Sustainability and the Environment with the creation of the Sustainability and Environmental 
Services group. 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

66



• Initiative to pilot a program to assist residents with pest control. 

Integrated Facilities Services Major Revenue and Expense Items 

Revenue is $2.1 million, an increase of $236 thousand from FY24. All Revenue is forecasted to come from service 
fees charged to properties. 

Operating Expenses are $2.5 million, an increase of $813 thousand from FY24. The significant drivers of Operating 
Expenses are expected to be: 

• Maintenance Personnel Expense is $1.5 million, a $383 thousand increase. 

• Program Personnel Expenses in support of department administration are $472 thousand, a $197 thousand 
increase due to staff movement. 

• Administrative Personnel Expense is $73 thousand, a decrease of $11 thousand. 

• All personnel expenses include planned compensation increases. 

• Other Maintenance Expenses are $99 thousand and include materials and vehicle expenses. This is a $6 
thousand decrease. 

• Utilities for waste transfer station fees are distributed to the properties and are removed from this budget group. 

Integrated Facilities Services Funding Required for Current Agency Activities 

Integrated Facilities Services has an operational need of $1.0 million. This is an increase of $802 thousand from 
FY24.  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

67



Budget Commentary – Development 

Summary Budget Data FY24 Budget FY25 Budget 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

Operating Revenue  13,879,036   15,319,748   1,440,712  

Operating Expense  4,245,905   4,541,054   295,149  

Operating Income Before OH  9,633,131   10,778,694   1,145,563  

Allocated Overhead  2,342,651   2,615,899   273,248  

Operating Income After OH  7,290,480   8,162,795   872,315  

Funding Flow Activity  (6,047,562)  (8,163,854)  (2,116,292) 

Funding Required or (Contributed) for Current 
Agency Activities  (6,047,562)  (8,163,854)  (2,116,292) 

Total Budgeted FTE  20.3   23.3   3.0  

The Development department undertakes the development of new affordable rental housing, plus the acquisition and 
rehabilitation of existing affordable housing properties. As part of its development and rehabilitation efforts, 
Development is also responsible for structuring the financing that supports these construction activities. Relocation 
services are provided as necessary in support of various development and rehabilitation projects. The department 
earns Developer Fees to support current and future development activity costs. 

• Active Projects: 13 

• Active Projects Total Budget: $529 million 

• Staff FTE FY25: 23.3 

Development Key Assumptions 

Staffing is budgeted to increase by 3.0 FTE from the prior year after the department reorganized staff positions. 

• Increases Include: 

o 1 Affordable Housing Developer 

o 1 Housing Development Manager 

o 1 Housing Development Coordinator 

The department will continue to utilize inter-agency transfers to reflect staffing costs capitalized in real properties or 
transferred from other departments. 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

68



Developer Fees Accrued and Received FY25 (amounts in millions) 

Project Project Budget 
Accrued 

Developer Fee 
Revenue 

Developer Fee 
Cash to be 
Received 

Dekum 2 LP 94.6 2.9 0.0 

Killingsworth Housing LP 51.6 1.6 0.0 

Peaceful Villa Redevelopment 104.1 6.4 1.4 

Troutdale Housing LP 54.0 3.3 0.0 

Gresham Civic Station 45.5 0.6 0.3 

Goose Hollow 14.0 0.5 0.0 

3000 Powell LP 83.8 0.0 0.7 

Fairfield PSH LP 31.6 0.0 0.9 

GPT LP 49.9 0.0 1.9 

Total $529.1  $15.3  $5.2  

Development Major Programs/Initiatives/Activities and Estimated Budget Impact 

• Dekum 2 LP – This redevelopment project is divided into two phases. Phase 1 is a mixed-use new construction of 
47 housing units. The households occupying 40 public housing units will move to the newly constructed property. 
Phase 2 is demolishing the existing property and building 141 housing units. This tax credit partnership utilizes 
four percent Low-Income Housing Tax Credits, Metro Housing Bond Proceeds, and reserve funds. Construction 
finance closed in April 2022, and construction of Phase 1 began in May 2022. Phase 1 of the project was 
completed in October 2023, and construction of Phase 2 started in August 2023. The project completion schedule 
is June 2025. 

Dekum Court 
(In millions) 

FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 Total 

Total Project Sources 
and Uses $24.6  $29.1  $22.4  $10.6  $7.9  $94.6  

• PCC/Killingsworth Housing Project – Home Forward, working with Portland Community College (PCC), 
formulated a development partnership in which Home Forward provides development services in the construction 
of 84 affordable housing units. Home Forward is the developer, owner, and General Partner of the Low-Income 
Housing Tax Credit partnership. PCC owns the land, and the tax credit partnership will lease the land from PCC. 
This tax credit partnership utilizes four percent Low-Income Housing Tax Credits, Metro Bond Proceeds, OHCS 
grant, Local Innovation and Fast Track (LIFT), and reserve funds. Construction finance closed in February 2024, 
and construction began in March 2024. The project completion schedule is September 2025. 

  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

69



PCC/Killingsworth 
(In millions) 

FY24 FY25 FY26 Total 

Total Project Sources 
and Uses $25.8 $18.5  $7.3  $51.6  

• Peaceful Villa Redevelopment – Peaceful Villa is one of the public housing properties included in the 85 Stories 
Initiative. Built in 1948, the property sits on four acres of land with 70 homes. The redevelopment anticipates 
increasing units from 70 to 166. The redeveloped Peaceful Villa forges a new partnership with the Immigrant and 
Refugee Community Organization (IRCO) to deliver culturally specific services to immigrants. Home Forward will 
serve as developer and owner as General Partner of the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit partnership. This tax 
credit partnership will utilize four percent Low-Income Housing Credits, bond funds, OHCS grants, and reserve 
funds. Construction finance is expected to close in February 2025 and construction begin in March 2025. The 
project completion schedule is December 2026. 

Peaceful Villa 
(In millions) FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 Total 

Total Project Sources 
and Uses $21.7 $38.5 $30.1 $13.2 $104.1  

• Troutdale Housing Project - Home Forward and Multnomah County have entered into an intergovernmental 
agreement (IGA) to transfer the 3.58-acre site to Home Forward. The site is at SW 257th Avenue and East 
Historic Columbia River Street in Troutdale. This project will develop approximately 111 affordable housing units 
in Troutdale. Home Forward will serve as developer, owner and General Partner of the Low-Income Housing Tax 
Credit partnership. This tax credit partnership utilizes nine percent Low-Income Housing Tax Credits, Metro Bond 
Proceeds, OHCS grants, HUD CFP grants, and reserve funds. Construction finance closed in May 2024, and 
construction began in June 2024. The project completion schedule is April 2026. 

Troutdale Housing 
(In millions) 

FY24 FY25 FY26 Total 

Total Project Sources 
and Uses $16.2 $27.0  $10.8  $54.0  

• Capital Improvement Projects – There are four capital improvement projects in FY25. The total budget for these 
projects is $10.2 million, utilizing the HUD Capital Fund Project Grant and OHCS Preservation Grant. 

Projects 
Project Budget 

(In millions) 
Estimated Project 

Completion 

Gretchen Kafoury Full Envelope $3.9  August 2025 

Peter Paulson Full Envelope $1.6  August 2025 

Sequoia Square Full Envelope $2.8 July 2025 

Schiller Way Full Envelope $1.9 November 2025 

Total $10.2    

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

70



Development Major Revenue and Expense Items 

• Operating Revenue increased $1.4 million from the FY24 Budget. The increase is primarily due to: 

o Developer Fee earnings increased by $1.6 million from FY24. In FY25, Development will earn $15.3 
million in developer fees from the following projects: 

Developer Fees (in millions) 

Projects 
Total 

Developer 
Fee 

FY25 

Dekum 2 LP 13.2 2.9 

Goose Hollow 1.2 0.5 

Gresham Civic Station 5.8 0.6 

PCC/Killingworth Project 5.4 1.6 

Peaceful Villa Redevelopment 12.5 6.4 

Troutdale Housing 6.0 3.3 

Total $44.1  $15.3  

• State, Local & Other Grants decreased by $163 thousand from FY24. 

• Total Operating Expenses are projected to be $4.5 million, a $270 thousand increase from the FY24 budget. The 
increase is primarily due to Personnel Expenses of $4.5 million. 

Development Funding Required for Current Agency Activities 

The cash to Home Forward highlights the cyclical nature of projects where developer fees are earned and paid over 
the next fiscal years. The project lifecycle of the department is exhibited by: 

• 3000 Powell project will generate $6.0 million in developer fees over multiple fiscal years. The first installment of 
$1.0 million was paid at the close of construction finance in November 2021. The second and third installments of 
$1.9 million will be paid at project conversion to permanent status scheduled in March 2025. The final installment 
of $700 thousand is due upon receipt of Form 8609 by the Limited Partner, planned in June 2025. The remaining 
unpaid developer fee of $2.4 million will be paid from the limited partnership cash flow from operations and 
proceeds available for distribution from capital transactions. 

• Dekum Court Redevelopment project will generate $13.2 million in developer fees over multiple fiscal years. The 
first installment of $1.5 million was due at the close of construction finance in April 2022 but was delayed due to 
non-receipt of construction permit and was paid in February 2024. The second installment of $1.5 million was 
paid at the project conversion of Phase 1 in June 2024. The third installment of $6.6 million is due at the project 
conversion of Phase 2 and is expected to be paid in April 2026. The final installment of $500 thousand is due 
upon receipt of Form 8609 by the Limited Partner and is scheduled for May 2026. The remaining unpaid 
developer fee of $3.1 million will be paid from the limited partnership cash flow from operations and proceeds 
available for distribution from capital transactions. 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

71



• Fairfield PSH project will generate $3.3 million in developer fees over multiple fiscal years. The first installment of 
$772 thousand was paid at the close of construction finance in April 2023. The second installment of $772 
thousand was paid upon receipt of 100% certificate of occupancy in September 2024. The third installment of 
$772 thousand is due upon project stabilization in June 2025. The fourth and final installment of $100 thousand is 
due upon receipt of IRS Form 8609 and delivery of Partnership tax returns scheduled in December 2025. The 
remaining unpaid developer fee of $834 thousand will be paid from the limited partnership cash flow from 
operations and proceeds available for distribution from capital transactions. 

• Grace Peck Terrace project will generate $5.2 million in developer fees over multiple fiscal years. The first 
installment of $472 thousand was paid at the close of construction finance in April 2023. The second installment 
of $955 thousand is due at construction completion, receipt of 100% certificate of occupancy, and project 
conversion scheduled in June 2025. The third and final installment of $937 thousand is due upon receipt of IRS 
Form 8609 and delivery of Partnership tax returns scheduled in September 2025. The remaining unpaid 
developer fee of $2.9 million will be paid from the limited partnership cash from operation and proceeds available 
for distribution from capital transactions. 

• PCC/Killingsworth Housing project will generate $5.4 million in developer fees over multiple fiscal years. The first 
installment of $1 million was paid at the close of construction finance in February 2024. The second installment of 
$1.5 million is due at construction completion scheduled to be paid in March 2026. The third installment of $1.5 
million is due upon receipt of the draft cost certification, eligible basis and lease up scheduled to be paid in June 
2026. The fourth and final installment of $300 thousand is due upon receipt of IRS Form 8609 and delivery of 
Partnership tax returns scheduled to be paid in September 2026. The remaining unpaid developer fee of $1.1 
million will be paid from the limited partnership cash from operation and proceeds available for distribution from 
capital transactions. 

• Troutdale Housing Project is projected to generate $6.0 million in developer fees over multiple fiscal years. The 
first installment of $1.6 million was paid at the close of construction finance in June 2024. The second installment 
of $1.6 million is due upon receipt of 100% certificate of occupancy scheduled in June 2026. The third installment 
of $1.6 million is due at project conversion to permanent scheduled to be paid in March 2027. The fourth and final 
installment of $100 thousand is due upon receipt of IRS Form 8609 and delivery of Partnership tax returns 
scheduled in September 2027. The remaining unpaid developer fee of $1.1 million will be paid from the limited 
partnership cash from operation and proceeds available for distribution from capital transactions. 

• Peaceful Villa Redevelopment project is projected to generate $12.5 million in developer fees over multiple fiscal 
years. The first installment of $1.4 million is due June 2025. 

• Gresham Civic Station Project is projected to generate $5.5 million in developer fees over multiple fiscal years. 
The first installment of $300 thousand is due at the close of construction finance scheduled in December 2025. 

• Goose Hollow Project is projected to generate $1.2 million in developer fees over multiple fiscal years. The first 
installment of $445 thousand is due at the close of construction finance scheduled in March 2025. 

 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

72



Budget Commentary – Community Services 

Summary Budget Data FY24 Budget FY25 Budget 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

Operating Revenue  6,234,888   8,216,832   1,981,944  

Operating Expense  9,809,566   11,398,546   1,588,980  

Operating Income Before OH  (3,574,678)  (3,181,714)  392,964  

Allocated Overhead  1,690,256   2,153,224   462,968  

Operating Income After OH  (5,264,935)  (5,334,938)  (70,003) 

Funding Flow Activity  4,789,711   5,334,938   545,227  

Funding Required or (Contributed) for Current 
Agency Activities  4,789,711   5,334,938   545,227  

Total Budgeted FTE  43.9   66.0   22.1  

The Community Services department provides services to Home Forward residents, utilizing in-house staff and 
contractors. In FY25, the Community Services team will continue to play a role in coordinating and delivering services 
at 51 Home Forward properties throughout Multnomah County. The group plans to deliver services to approximately 
3,000 residents, providing around 15,000 service interactions. Through intentional alignment with community 
partners, the department will work holistically with both individual and family systems to further their goals of social, 
emotional, academic, and economic advancement and well-being. 

This summary includes the services budgets for Home Forward's three HOPE VI developments (Humboldt Gardens, 
Stephens Creek Crossing, and New Columbia), Bud Clark Commons, 85 Stories - Phase I, and programs and 
services to residents at traditional affordable housing and public housing properties. 

Community Services Key Assumptions 

FTEs – Community Services has a net increase of 22.1 FTEs. Most of the increases are due to increase grant 
funding at Bud Clark Commons. This allowed the removal of 8 staff from the property budget to Community Services 
budgets, and the hiring of 6 additional staff. 

• Increases include: 

o 2 Caseworkers 

o 2 Resident & Community Services Coordinators 

o 1 Resident and Community Services Youth Coordinator 

o 8 Resident Specialists 

o 1 Assistant Director of Community Services 

o 1 Assistant Property Manager 

o 1.5 Maintenance Mechanics 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

73



o 1 Resident and Community Services Coordinator 

• In addition, 4.6 FTE will be added for a Sellwood Safety Redesign Pilot to start in FY25. 

Community Services Major Programs/Initiatives/Activities and Estimated Budget Impact 

Barrier Reduction and Opportunity Funds: $74 thousand is proposed in Moving to Work Initiative funds (MIF) to 
continue implementing strategies to support independence for seniors and individuals with disabilities, provide short-
term respite care for individuals impacted by violence and to provide opportunities for economic advancement at 
family properties. 

Neighbor 2 Neighbor: $76 thousand is proposed in MIF to award grants for resident-led programs that foster a sense 
of community. 

Community Services Major Revenue and Expense Items 

Operating Revenue is $8.2 million, an increase of $2.0 million from FY24. The significant contributors to Operating 
Revenue are: 

• Non-dwelling rental is $218 thousand from Land Lease revenue at Humboldt, the same as FY24. 

• HUD Subsidies -Public Housing of $208 thousand funds $57 thousand in the GOALS program and $151 
thousand in services at Dahlke, Holgate, Medallion, Ruth Haefner, Schrunk, and Williams. 

• HUD grants are $1.5 million, an increase of $108 thousand. 

• State, Local, & Other Grants are $3.2 million, an increase of $1.4 million. 

o $895 thousand in Medicaid Revenue from senior/disabled support services (CHSP). 

o $2.3 million from the Multnomah County for Bud Clark Commons programs. 

• Other Revenue and IA Revenue of $3.1 million combined, an increase of $427 thousand from FY24, primarily 
consisting of: 

o Program Fees from properties are $1.6 million, a decrease of $228 thousand. 

o Tenant Fees of $239 thousand for Congregate Housing Services Program (CHSP) participant fees, 
an increase of $64 thousand. 

o $962 thousand in Community Services contract fees for services at properties in Clackamas County. 

Operating Expenses are $11.4 million, an increase of $1.6 million from FY24. The primary drivers of Operating 
Expenses are: 

• Administrative Expenses of $971 thousand, an increase of $256 thousand. 

o Personnel Expenses are $718 thousand, an increase of $131 thousand. 

o Other Admin Expenses of $253 thousand, a decrease of $386 thousand. 

  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

74



• Tenant Services expense is $9.4 million, an increase of $1.8 million. 

o Direct Community Services, Program Supplies, Contract Tenant Services, and other expenses are 
$3.6 million. This is an increase of $250 thousand primarily due to increased contracted services. 

o Tenant Services Personnel expense is $3.8 million, an increase of $476 thousand. 

• Program Personnel Expense is $816 thousand, an increase of $50 thousand. 

• Inter-Agency expense is $187 thousand for the Community Services department administration fee. This is an 
increase of $6 thousand. 

Community Services Funding Required for Current Agency Activities 

The Community Services department needs $5.3 million to fund all planned operations fully, an increase of $70 
thousand. Service initiatives will be funded through Single Fund Flexibility. 

  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

75



Budget Commentary – Administration 

Summary Budget Data FY24 Budget FY25 Budget 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

Operating Revenue  64,431   (560,654)  (625,085) 

Operating Expense  17,868,642   18,109,855   241,213  

Operating Income Before OH  (17,804,211)  (18,670,509)  (866,298) 

Allocated Overhead  (15,562,782)  (17,399,303)  (1,836,521) 

Operating Income After OH  (2,241,429)  (1,271,205)  970,224  

Funding Flow Activity  2,416,789   1,052,182   (1,364,607) 

Funding Required or (Contributed) for Current 
Agency Activities  2,416,789   1,052,182   (1,364,607) 

Total Budgeted FTE  58.0   59.9   1.9  

The Administration group provides management and administrative support to Home Forward’s operating 
departments. The group comprises Information Technology, Accounting/Finance, Purchasing, Human Resources, 
Executive, Training, Legal, and Communications. 

In addition, this group includes activities for several agency-wide initiatives focused on research and developing new 
program opportunities to further the Agency’s mission. 

Administration Key Assumptions 

FTEs – the Admin group has a net increase of 1.9 FTE. 

• Increases include: 

o 1 Section 504/Fair Housing Coordinator 

o 1 Senior Policy Manager 

• Decreases include: 

o 0.1 Assistant Facilities Manager - this position was reallocated to IFS in FY25 

Administration Major Programs/Initiatives/Activities and Estimated Budget Impact 

During the year, Home Forward will continue to implement upgrades to Yardi Voyager 7s, including waitlist 
management, procurement, and other features to enhance and support Home Forward's work. In addition to better 
functionality, the new system will help with rent calculations, agency training, and payments. 

Home Forward will also invest in improved data storage and network recovery options. 

Administration Major Revenue and Expense Items 

• Operating Revenue will be -$561 thousand. 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

76



Operating Expenses are budgeted at $18.1 million. 

• Personnel costs will be $10.0 million, an increase of $400 thousand. These costs reflect planned compensation 
increases and a higher PERS liability. 

• Consulting expenses will be $1.1 million, primarily due continued development of Yardi Voyager 7s. 

• There will be $204 thousand for maintenance needs and utilities at New Market West.  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

77



Budget Commentary – Real Estate Finance 

Summary Budget Data FY24 Budget FY25 Budget 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

Operating Revenue  -     -     -    

Operating Expense  202,799   349,632   146,833  

Operating Income Before OH  (202,799)  (349,632)  (146,833) 

Allocated Overhead  -     -     -    

Operating Income After OH  (202,799)  (349,632)  (146,833) 

Funding Flow Activity  (498,596)  260,851   759,447  

Funding Required or (Contributed) for Current 
Agency Activities  1,026,883   260,851   (766,032) 

Total Budgeted FTE  -     -     -    

The Real Estate Finance group captures the financing activity for Home Forward. It allows for greater transparency by 
isolating the financing activities from the agency's operating activities. The activity includes land lease revenues, cell 
tower arrangements, and omnibus loans issued with real estate activity. 

Real Estate Finance Major Revenue and Expense Items 

• Operating Expense is projected to be $350 thousand, The primary drivers of Operating Expense are: 

o $261 thousand in Personnel Expense. 

o $88 thousand in Depreciation.

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

78



Attachments 
Summary of Moving to Work Initiative Funds 
 

Initiative Description 
First 
Year 

FY24  
Budget 

FY25 
Budget 

STRA Funding 
In collaboration with community partners, provide limited housing assistance to 
eligible households in Multnomah County who are at risk of eviction, are newly 
homeless, or are experiencing immediate crises in their housing. 

FY12  1,505,386   1,568,454  

   Home Forward STRA Home Forward will fund a portion of the Short-Term Rental Assistance program 
administered by the Joint Office of Homeless Services. FY14  572,250   586,270  

   Alder School Home Forward will provide short to medium-term rent assistance and leverage 
school support at Alder School to improve academic outcomes and housing stability. FY14  499,119   525,263  

   New Doors/NAFY 
Shared housing model for former or transitioning foster care youth who are 
experiencing homelessness or at risk of homelessness. Leverages service dollars 
from Multnomah County. 

FY14  44,201   46,310  

   Earl Boyles Housing Partnership 
Home Forward will provide short to medium-term rent assistance and leverage 
school support at Earl Boyles School to improve academic outcomes and housing 
stability. 

FY17  246,754   259,679  

   Economic Opportunity Program 
Home Forward will provide support and Worksource and Human Solutions to aid 
unstably housed or homeless households successfully engaged in Worksource 
training or employment programs. 

FY17  143,063   150,931  

Expungement Partnership 
Working with community partner Metropolitan Public Defender to support Home 
Forward residents with the following: criminal record expungements; 
consultation to meet ongoing obligations to the courts. 

FY17  274,892   933,068  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

79



Initiative Description 
First 
Year 

FY24  
Budget 

FY25 
Budget 

Worksystems Liaison Funds an agreement with Worksystems for residents in pursuit of economic 
advancement products. FY17  47,000   49,350  

Barrier Reduction and 
Opportunities 

Combines initiatives to promote asset-building and short-term respite care for 
resident impacted by community violence and assists the senior and disabled 
population age-in-place by maintaining their quality of life. 

FY12  70,522   74,048  

Neighbor 2 Neighbor 
A grant program for resident groups from our public or affordable housing 
communities. Resident groups submit applications for grant funds to improve 
their community livability and reinforce community values. 

FY12  49,613   75,600  

Local Blended Subsidy (LBS) 
LBS uses a blend of MTW Section 8 and public housing operating funds to 
subsidize rental units. Leveraging subsidies allows for a more adequate revenue 
stream and increases the number of households that can be served. 

FY12  2,011,272   2,424,960  

VASH Security Deposit The initiative addresses a severe barrier to VASH Vouchers by providing 
security deposits for homeless veterans leasing units requiring deposits. FY12  93,240   42,000  

Landlord Incentive Fund 
Attract new landlords and units in low-poverty areas to the Housing Choice 
Voucher program. Eligible units must be in zip codes considered low-poverty 
areas and have not had a tenant in the prior 24 months. 

FY13  35,700   35,700  

Domestic Violence Transfer Funds 
An inter-jurisdictional transfer program to assist participants who are victims of 
domestic violence relocate to cities outside Multnomah County. Home Forward 
will provide up to $2,000 in relocation assistance. 

FY13  10,500   11,025  

Flexible Rent Assistance 
Flexible rent assistance helps participants with various barriers to housing, 
including applications, bad debt, security deposits, expungement fees, and other 
financial assistance to aid the leasing process. 

FY20  105,000   105,000  

Tenant Education A program designed to help our tenants better understand the rental process. FY16  87,945   90,662  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

80



Initiative Description 
First 
Year 

FY24  
Budget 

FY25 
Budget 

Nesika Illahee Locally funded rent assistance for Nesika Illahee. FY21  86,303   91,136  

Mamook Tokatee Locally funded rent assistance for Mamook Tokatee. FY24  83,160   87,817  

Total – MTW Initiatives    4,460,532   5,588,820  
     

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

81



FY25 Estimated Households Served by Category 
 

  
 

                                                  

 

 

 

*Rent Assistance Occupying Affordable Units represents 
voucher holders that live within our Affordable and Tax 
Credit properties. The 4,256 represents residents 
already included in the Rent Assistance / Affordable 
Housing / Tax Credit Portfolios. An adjustment is made 
to provide an unduplicated total. 

This includes the impact of RAD/Section 18 conversions. 

 

 

 

 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

82



FY25 Estimated Rent Assistance Households Served by Category 
 

  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

83



Subsidy Proration Trends 
 

Subsidy Proration Trends 1 

Actual Funding Year CY 17 CY 18 CY 19 CY 20 CY 21 CY 22 CY 23 CY 24 CY 25 (Est) 

Home Forward Budget Year FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2019 
12/31 YE 

FY 2021 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 

Section 8 Voucher Funding 98.0% 99.7% 99.7% 99.0% 99.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

Section 8 Admin Fees 77.0% 78.0% 76.0% 79.0% 80.0% 82.0% 87.0% 88.0% 91.0% 

Public Housing Operating Subsidy 93.1% 94.7% 96.3% 91.7% 92.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 
 

  

1 Proration represents the percentage of total funding under HUD's program formula. Percentages below 100% represent inadequate federal budget appropriations 
based on HUD's program formulas. 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

84



Cumulative Change in HCV Funding vs. Cumulative Change in Metro Area Apartment Rent 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

85



 

FTE Change Comparison Schedule 

 

Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs) by Funding Source 

 FY24 
Budget 

FY25 
Budget 

Increase / 
(Decrease) 

Agency Funded 310.7 341.9 31.2 

Other Legal Entity Funded 54.7 50.5 (4.2) 

Total Agency-Managed Positions 365.4 392.5 27.0 
 

FY25 Summary of FTE Changes 
Title Department FTE 

Section 504/Fair Housing Coordinator Admin 1.0 

Senior Policy Manager Admin 1.0 

Preservation and Capital Needs Project Manager Asset Management 1.0 

Assistant Director of Community Services Community Services 1.0 

Assistant Property Manager Community Services 1.0 

Maintenance Mechanic Community Services 1.5 

Resident and Community Services Coordinator Community Services 1.0 

Sellwood Safety Redesign Pilot Community Services 4.6 

Maintenance Mechanic Property Management 2.0 

Assistant Director of Housing Choice Voucher 
Program 

Rent Assistance 1.0 

Housing Navigator Rent Assistance 1.0 

Program Manager Rent Assistance 1.0 

Program Supervisor Rent Assistance 1.0 

Project Manager Rent Assistance -1.0 

Rent Assistance Services Coordinator Rent Assistance 2.0 

Total FY25 Changes  19.1 
 

  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

86



Mid-Year FTE Changes for FY24 
Title Department FTE 

Associate Asset Manager Asset Management 1.0 

Assistant Director of Development Development 1.0 

Community Relations Manager Development -1.0 

Finance Manager Development -1.0 

Housing Development Coordinator Development 1.0 

Housing Development Manager Development 1.0 

Project Manager Development 1.0 

Strategic Initiatives Manager Development 1.0 

Administrative Supervisor Property Management 1.0 

Intake Specialist Property Management 1.0 

LT Maintenance Mechanic Property Management -1.0 

Onboarding and Training Coordinator Property Management -1.0 

Rent Assistance Specialist Property Management 1.7 

Support Specialist Property Management 1.0 

Program Supervisor Rent Assistance 1.0 

Rent Assistance Program Analyst Rent Assistance 1.0 

Rent Assistance Program Specialist Rent Assistance 1.0 

Rent Assistance Services Coordinator Lead Rent Assistance -1.0 

Senior Housing Inspector Rent Assistance 1.0 

Special Program Coordinator - Limited Duration Rent Assistance -1.0 

Resident and Community Services Youth 
Coordinator 

Community Services 1.0 

Youth Employment Service Coordinator Community Services -1.0 

Environmental and Emergency Manager Safety -1.0 

Other Changes  0.2 

Total Mid-Year Changes  7.9 

  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

87



Acronym Key 

85 Stories: Multi-year development initiative to change the subsidy structure for ten high-rise public housing 
apartment communities to leverage equity and debt to make needed capital repairs to deteriorating building systems. 

ACOP: Admission and Condition Operating Plan – the document that establishes guidelines for determining public 
housing eligibility and occupancy. 

AH: Affordable Housing – properties owned in whole or partly by Home Forward and managed by outside property 
management companies. 

ARF: Asset Repositioning Fee – Temporary subsidy to aid in the disposition of Public Housing units. The subsidy 
continues for two years and is tied to Operating Subsidy. The first year is funded at 75% of Operating Subsidy, and 
the second year is 50%. 

CHSP: Congregate Housing Services Program 

Congregate Care: Programs that provide services to help senior and disabled residents maintain their 
independence. 

CSS: Community & Supportive Services – Community services are tied to a HOPE VI property. 

CY: Calendar Year – the year running from January 1 to December 31 (as opposed to fiscal year). 

DDTF: Demolition or Disposition Transitional Funding – a five-year limited duration continuation of the Capital Fund to 
assist with the modernization and development of Public Housing units. 

FSS: Family Self-Sufficiency – HUD programs that seek to increase participants' skills and enable them to obtain 
employment. 

FTE: Full-Time Equivalent measures how many full-time employees and organizations have arrived at by adding all 
positions, including those that are part-time. 

FUP: Family Unification Program – a HUD Section 8 Voucher program focused on reuniting youth with their families. 

FY: Fiscal Year – the 12-month accounting year. 

GOALS: Greater Opportunities to Advance, Learn, and Succeed – a Home Forward program that provides Section 8 
and public housing clients with five years of supportive services as they work toward economic independence. 

HAP: Housing Assistance Payment – the amount of money Section 8 pays to a landlord on behalf of the tenant. 

HCV: Housing Choice Voucher 

HFDE: Home Forward Development Enterprises 

HUD: US Department of Housing and Urban Development  

IA: Inter-Agency Revenue/Expense – direct cost transfer between departments and operating groups. 

LIHTC: Low-Income Housing Tax Credit is a program created by HUD in 1986 to provide tax credits for the 
acquisition, rehabilitation, or new construction of rental housing targeted to lower-income households. 

LP: Limited Partnership 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

88



MIF: MTW Initiatives Fund – Home Forward funding source for significant initiatives, funded from flexible funds. 

MOD: Moderate Rehabilitation 

MTW: Moving to Work: a national program authorized by Congress and administered by HUD that allows certain 
regulatory flexibilities to some 30 participating housing authorities. 

NOFA: Notice of Funding Availability 

PERS: Public Employee Retirement System 

PH: Public Housing – Home Forward owned and operated subsidized housing supported by HUD funding. 

PHB: Portland Housing Bureau 

PILOT: Payment In Lieu of Taxes – payments negotiated with local municipalities to cover city services generally 
funded by property taxes. Currently, contracts provide for reinvestment of these funds into Short-Term Rent 
Assistance. 

RAD: Rental Assistance Demonstration – HUD program to preserve public housing properties by converting them to 
project-based section 8, allowing housing authorities to leverage public and private debt to reinvest in public housing 
stock. 

ROSS: Resident Opportunities and Self Sufficiency Grant Program – HUD program that funds staff to coordinate 
community resources with public housing residents’ needs. 

Shelter Plus Care: a federal rent assistance program for homeless persons with disabilities provided in connection 
with supportive services funded from sources outside the program. 

SRO: Single Room Occupancy 

STRA: Short-Term Rent Assistance: a program administered by Home Forward that disperses funding from public 
sector partners to agencies that aid families experiencing homelessness or in danger of losing their housing. 

Towers: A group of four properties originally in the Public Housing Portfolio converted to site-based Section 8 in 
September 2013. The four properties are Gallagher Place, Hollywood East, Northwest Towers, and Sellwood Center. 

VASH: Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing – Section 8 Vouchers for homeless veterans referred by Veterans 
Affairs. 

 

 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

89



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

90



FY25 Operating Statement by Operating Group 

 
 

* Numbers may vary slightly due to rounding  

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

91



FY25 Funding Flow Analysis by Operating Group* 

  

* Numbers may vary slightly due to rounding. 

 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

92



 

 

 
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
 

From:  Kandy Sage, Chief Financial 
Officer  

 
 Jeff Klatke, Manager of Risk & 

Treasury 
 

 

Date:  December 17, 2024 
 
 

Subject:   Authorizes Home Forward to 
Enter into Agreements for 
Insurance Services Beginning 
January 1, 2025 

 Resolution 24-12-05 
  

 
 
 

 
The Board of Commissioners is requested to authorize Home Forward to enter into 
agreements for insurance coverage for the period beginning January 1, 2025.  
 
This action supports Home Forward’s 2023-2026 Strategic Plan goal to lead within the 
housing ecosystem by working with partners to align resources to meet community need. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Home Forward is entering the ninth year of its comprehensive insurance program and uses 
Marsh to market the program for insurance coverage for Home Forward and its related 
entities. Lines of coverage include property, casualty/general liability, automotive liability, 
financial, and professional lines, crime, cyber/special risk coverage, terrorism, and other 
miscellaneous coverage. (Please note: health insurance and workers compensation 
insurance are administered by our Human Resources group and are separate from this 
renewal process.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

2 
 

OVERVIEW 
 
Total third-party premiums will increase $586 thousand, an increase of 11.9% overall from 
fiscal year 2024. There are multiple factors that are driving this year’s increase. Those factors 
include: 
 

• In January of this year, Home Forward experienced damages across our portfolio as 
a result of the winter ice storm and processed significant claims with our insurance 
captive and Travelers property insurance in the amount of $9.5 million. Home 
Forward Insurance Group covered a total of $2 million with Travelers covering the 
remainder of the claim.  
 

• There continues to be a contraction in the number of providers of insurance 
worldwide. This is, mainly, due to the impact of the last several years of global losses 
and was a negative factor for the renewals. 
 

• Other than is winter storm event detailed above, the captive insurance entity 
contributed favorably by successfully limiting additional claims submitted to Travelers 
for property insurance and Munich RE for Auto & General Liability during 2024. 

 
Actuarial reports for Home Forward’s insurance captive are in the final stages of review. 
Total premiums paid by Home Forward to Home Forward Insurance Group will remain flat 
from 2024 and will be $1.8 million.  
 
The recommended providers and the level of coverage for Fiscal Year 2025 consist of:  
 
Property Coverage  
 

• Property coverage remains at a limit of $100 million.  
  

• Home Forward Insurance Group continues to provide the first $2 million layer of 
property insurance coverage. This is supported by Starr Specialty to ensure 
compliance with investor and funder requirements. The fronting fee for Starr Specialty 
will remain flat next year in the amount of $175 thousand.  
 

 
 
 
 



 

3 
 

 
 
 

• Travelers Excess and Surplus Lines Company (Travelers) will provide the rest of 
coverage up to the $100 million level. 

 
o Property level deductibles will remain at $100 thousand per occurrence with 

an additional $2 million in coverage provided by the insurance captive to 
provide a ceiling to total losses in the amount of $2.1 million per occurrence. 
 

o Earthquake liability coverage remains the same with a $10 million limit. 
 

o Flood liability coverage remains the same with a $10 million limit. 
 

o Terrorism coverage remains the same with a $50 million limit. We will continue 
to receive this coverage from Lloyd’s/Roanoke Group. 

 
• Total annual costs for property coverage effective January 1, 2025 will be $2.5 million, 

an increase of $430 thousand or 20.3%. 
 
Casualty/Financial and Professional Coverage  
 
Home Forward uses several providers for these lines of coverage: 
 
• Munich Re will continue to provide a package of coverage including general liability, auto, 

employee benefits, professional liability and terrorism coverage, and other miscellaneous 
coverage.  
 

o The annual cost for this coverage will be $469 thousand, an increase of $46 
thousand or 9.1%.  
 
 The annual cost for general liability will be $286 thousand, a decrease of 

$36 thousand or 11.1%. Coverage remains at a $2 million / $10 million 
aggregate per location.   

 
 Total annual cost for auto liability will be $100 thousand, an increase of 

$80 thousand or 405%. Coverage limit remains the same at $2 million.  
 

 



 

4 
 

• Travelers Casualty will continue to provide coverage for crime as we enter another 3-
year policy that will expire 12/31/2027. 
 

o Total annual cost will decrease to just over $5 thousand or 7.8%. 
 
• Chubb (ACE) will continue a policy for our public officials’ liability coverage. 

 
o Total annual cost will be $55 thousand, a decrease of $3 thousand or 5.9%. 

 
• Three new carriers will continue a stacked policy for our $10 million excess liability.  
 

o Total annual will be $614 thousand, an increase of $96 thousand or 18.6%. 
 

o Hudson will provide coverage of $2 million to a limit of $5 million. 
o Westchester will provide coverage of $5 million to a limit of $8 million. 
o Lexington will provide coverage of $8 million to a limit of $10 million. 

 
 
• Coalition previously provided a limit of $3 million for our cyber insurance and will increase 

that limit to $5 million for the 2025 renewal cycle. Total cost will be $65 thousand, an 
increase of $19 thousand or 40.4%.  

 
CONCLUSION 
The total combined cost for third-party insurance carriers for all the above lines of coverage 
will be $3.8 million for the period January 1, 2025, to December 31, 2025. This reflects an 
increase in premiums of $586 thousand or 18.5% of prior premiums and is similar to our 
increase in total insurable value.  
 
Total premiums paid by Home Forward to Home Forward Insurance Group are internal and 
will remain flat at $1.8 million for the year.   
 
 
 
 
  



 

5 
 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 24-12-05 
 

RESOLUTION 24-12-05 AUTHORIZES  HOME FORWARD TO ENTER INTO AGREEMENTS 
FOR INSURANCE SERVICES COMMENCING JANUARY 1, 2025 
 
WHEREAS, Home Forward, is a public body corporate and politic of the State of Oregon; 
 
WHEREAS, Home Forward requires appropriate levels of insurance coverage to protect its 
residents, employees, assets, and reputational well-being; 
 
WHEREAS, a comprehensive insurance program has been designed, in consultation with 
Marsh, to ensure appropriate levels of insurance coverage for property, casualty/general 
liability, automotive, boiler and machinery, financial and professional lines, cyber, and other 
miscellaneous business risks, including umbrella coverage;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT BE RESOLVED: that the Board of Commissioners of Home Forward 
authorizes Home Forward’s Board Chair, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, 
Chief Administrative Officer or Chief Operating Officer to execute agreements for Home 
Forward’s comprehensive insurance program including property, boiler & equipment, 
terrorism insurance, casualty/general liability, automotive, umbrella, financial and 
professional lines, crime, and cyber/special risks and other insurance coverages as needed.   
 
ADOPTED:  DECEMBER 17, 2024  
 
Attest:  Home Forward:  
 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Ivory N. Mathews, Secretary    Matthew Gebhardt, Chair 

 



ALL RISK PROPERTY, BOILER & MACHINERY, 
EARTHQUAKE & FLOOD, AND BUSINESS INTERRUPTION

Deductible:

Deductible: $100,000 All Risk with $2M aggregate; 
3% Earthquake or $250,000 Minimum & $250,000 Flood

and others not subject to aggregate.

Insurer:  Travelers Excess and Surplus Lines Company

All Risk Property, Boiler & Machinery, Business Interruption

includes $10M Earthquake and $10M Flood 
(both annual agg.)

Limit:  100%  or $100M

Home Forward 
PROPERTY Program Renewal as of 1/1/2025

TERRORISM

Deductible: $100K or $10k

Insurer: 
Roanoke

Limit:
$50M

Premium:

$12,500

HF Insurance Group LLC &
Starr Specialty 

$2M aggregate limit

Deductible: $10k



Workers'
Compensation

Insurer:
SAIF

Limit: 
$1M/$1M/$1M

PUBLIC
OFFICIALS
LABILITY

Home Forward 
CASUALTY and FINPRO Program Renewal as of 1/1/2025

General / Automobile / Workers' Compensation / Umbrella

GENERAL LIABILITY PUBLIC OFFICIALS 
- D&O, EPL and E&O

[Wrongful Act 
Coverage]

AUTOMOBILE

Insurer:
Munich RE

Automobile 
Liability

Limit: $2M

No coverage for 
Automobile 

Physical 
Damage

EXCESS LIABILITY

Insurers:  Hudson, ($2-5MM)
Westchester ($5-8MM)
Lexington ($8-10MM)

Limit:  $10M Policy Ag. xs Primary GL / AL / EL

MISC.
PROFESSIONAL

Insurer:
Munich RE

Misc. Professional

Limit:
$2M per 

occurrence
$10M Ag.

Deductible:
$100K

$250,000 per Occurrence Self- Insured Retention

Defense Cost:
Outside Limits of Liability & SIR

Capped at $2MM

FIDELITY &
CRIME

3 Yr Term

1/1/25-1/1/28

CRIME

Insurer:
Travelers

Employee 
Dishonesty, 

Forgery, 
Alteration,  or 

Theft of Money & 
Securities

Limit: 
$1M

Deductible:
$25K

Deductible:
$0

Deductible
$50K:

SPECIAL
RISKS

3 Yr Term

1/1/24-1/1/27

CYBER
LIABILITY

SPECIAL

Insurer: 
AIG

Limit:
$1M

CYBER

Insurer: 
Coalition

Limit:
$5M

\

Insurer:
CHUBB

Public Officials, Errors & 
Omissions, Employment 

Practices, 3rd Party 
Discrimination, Tenant 
Discrimination Defense 

Insurer:
Munich RE

General Liability 
Personal & 

Advertising Injury, 
Products & 

Completed Ops, 
Employee Benefits 

Liability

Limit: 
$2M per occurrence

$10M Ag.

Limit:
$2M



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Placeholder for Resolution 24-12-06 

Recognize Dena Ford-Avery 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

94



 

 

 

 

STAFF REPORTS 

 

 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

95



Contract # Amend # Contractor Contract Amount Description Dept. Execution Date Expiration Date

C3461 0 Prime Legacy $49,627.10 Gallagher plaza build back unit 507, 407, 307, 207 Property Mgmt 10/1/2024 12/31/2024

C3474 0 Prime Legacy $13,558.00 Restoration repair at Eliot Square Property Mgmt 10/18/2024 11/3/2024

C3484 0 Get It Done PDX LLC $97,593.04 Restoration/remodel at SCC Property Mgmt 12/11/2024 12/11/2024

C3499 0 Prime Legacy $13,805.00 Vacant unit repairs at Eliot Square Property Management 12/15/2024 12/15/2024

C3404 0
Alliance Environmental 

Group
$41,148.21 Madrona attic mold remidation DCR 12/31/2024 12/31/2024

Subtotal $215,731.35 5

Contract # Amend # Contractor Contract Amount Description Dept. Execution Date Expiration Date

C3462 0 Metro Saw Cutting LLC $21,825.00 Cut and remove concrete at Carlton Court Property Mgmt 10/16/2024 11/30/2024

C3478 0 NW Enforcement $14,668.00 Security services at Hattie Redmond Property Mgmt 10/22/2024 2/28/2024

C3459 0 NQ Industries $20,800.00 Metal container boxes IFS 10/23/2024 12/30/2024

C3485 0
Carahsoft Technology 

DBA DocuSign
$13,582.50 Electronic document signing Procurement 10/28/2024 10/15/2025

C3497 0 Prime Legacy $20,130.00 
Sheetrock cutting and repair; preventative 

maintenance on sprinkler heads at SCC
Property Mgmt 11/13/2024 11/22/2024

C3505 0 NW Enforcement $664,598.52 Security at Tukwila Community Services 11/20/2024 11/30/2027

C3498 0
Performance Insulation 

& Energy Services Inc
$22,875.00 

Insulation work on all units to prevent pipe bursting 

and flooding; preventative maintenance on sprinkler 

heads at SCC

Property Mgmt 11/26/2024 11/29/2024

Subtotal $778,479.02 7

Procurement & Contracts Department

MONTHLY CONTRACT REPORT

Contracts Approved  10/01/24 - 11/30/24

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT

(CONSTRUCTION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES)

GOODS & SERVICES

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

96



Contract # Amend # Contractor Contract Amount Description Dept. Execution Date Expiration Date

C3443 0
Volunteers of AMerica 

Oregon
$531,940.00 STRA Rent Assistance 9/27/2024 6/30/2029

C3465 0
Motus Recruiting & 

Staffing Inc.
$9,500.00 External Investigation Services HR 10/1/2024 12/15/2024

C3468 0 Portland Foot Care Clinic $8,100.00 Monthly foot care clinics for 10 residents Community Services 10/2/2024 12/31/2024

C3469 0

Colliers International 

Valuation & Advisory 

Services, LLC

$5,000.00 

Appraisal for property Home Forward is considering 

purchasing Goose Hollow Lofts; appraisal is a 

funder requirement  

DCR 10/2/2024 4/30/2025

C3463 0 Robert Half International $50,000.00 Temp position: Administrative Analyst Executive 10/4/2024 12/31/2024

C3464 0 Robert Half International $123,760.00 Temp position: Senior Project Manager Executive 10/4/2024 4/8/2025

C3470 0
Cascade Environmental 

Solutions
$4,500.00 Phase 1 ESA - Ruth Haefner DCR 10/8/2024 6/30/2029

C3471 0
Cascade Environmental 

Solutions
$4,500.00 Phase 1 ESA - Holgate House DCR 10/9/2024 6/30/2029

C3435 0 NAYA $713,531.00 STRA Rent Assistance 10/17/2024 6/30/2029

C3473 0
Elevator Consulting 

Services
$5,500.00 

Elevator Consultant Services for Gretchen Kafoury 

Commons
DCR 10/18/2024 12/31/2025

C3475 0 Life After Patriarchy LLC $15,113.50 Facilitate Intensive Learning Group Executive 10/18/2024 7/31/2025

C3476 0 Cuenta Conmigo LLC $36,200.00 Facilitate Intensive Learning Group Executive 10/18/2024 7/31/2025

C3477 0 Wholesome Health $2,000.00 Menu review and certification for CHSP Community Services 10/22/2024 12/31/2024

C3482 0 Clair Company $512.00 
Special Testing Inspections at Peter Paulson Apts. 

envelope rehabilitation project. 
DCR 10/23/2024 9/30/2025

C3483 0 The Bookin Group $9,300.00 
Consulting for Land Use Replat of Gresham Civic 

Parcel
DCR 10/23/2024 5/1/2025

C3481 0 Clair Company $750.00 
Special Testing inspections at Gretchen Kafoury 

Commons envelope rehabilitation project.  
DCR 10/25/2024 9/30/2025

C3487 0 Environmental Works $3,000.00 Post-rehab radon survey of Grace Peck Terrace DCR 10/25/2024 12/31/2024

C3425 0 Central City Concern $15,697.00 STRA Rent Assistance 10/30/2024 6/30/2029

C3489 0 Life After Patriarchy LLC $1,800.00 Equity Coaching IFS 10/30/2024 4/30/2025

C3490 0 Northwest Pilot Project $66,077.00 
JOHS funded supportive services for participants in 

HF's SPC program; Rule 46-0340
Homeless Initiatives 10/31/2024 6/30/2025

PERSONAL SERVICE CONTRACTS

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

97



C3486 0 Trupp HR Inc $15,000.00 Compensation consulting HR 11/5/2024 8/30/2025

C3493 0 KPFF $9,000.00 Topographic survey for Broadway Corridor DCR 11/5/2024 4/30/2025

C3496 0
Affordable Community 

Solutions
$25,000.00 

Specialized compliance re: Killingsworth and Berry 

Ridge
DCR 11/8/2024 10/26/2026

C3479 0
Melody Martinez 

Consulting LLC
$24,250.00 Facilitate Intensive Learning Group Executive 11/13/2024 7/31/2025

C3492 0 Going Home II $21,000.00 
Provide violence intervention and youth outreach 

services at New Columbia
Community Services 11/19/2024 12/31/2024

C3502 0
White Glove Building 

Maintenance
$10,000.00 

Window infrared imaging for property Home 

Forward is considering purchasing Goose Hollow 

Lofts

DCR 11/19/2024 4/30/2025

C3513 0
Novogradac & Company 

LLP
$10,000.00 

LIHTC consultation services to assess the financial 

projections and to help determine the project's ability 

to achieve LITE-specific thresholds and 

requirements during the construction and lease up 

period of development. 

DCR 11/25/2024 12/31/2025

C3514 0 Nancy Davis Consulting $3,000.00 Support & Facilitation of team retreat Property Management 11/26/2024 6/1/2025

Subtotal $1,724,030.50 28

Contract # Amend # Contractor Contract Amount Description Dept. Execution Date Expiration Date

C3467 0
W.B. Wells & 

Associates, Inc
$26,000.00 Surveying for Ruth Haefner DCR 10/7/2024 6/30/2029

C3456 0 KASA Architects $23,160.00 
Design services for Cesar to improve property for 

PSH services
DCR 10/9/2024 12/31/2025

C3500 0 Northwest Surveying Inc $4,700.00 Create partition plat for Civic project DCR 11/13/2024 12/1/2025

Total $53,860.00 3

Contract # Amend # Contractor Contract Amount Description Dept. Execution Date Expiration Date

C3251 4 Hacker Architects $126,329.00 
Revising schematic design; deducting amount from 

Amendment 2
DCR 9/4/2024 12/31/2026

C2445 10 Lever Architects $9,000.00 RDH Additional services DCR 9/10/2024 6/30/2025

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CONTRACTS (A&E)

AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING CONTRACTS

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

98



C3250 1 Holst Architects $65,685.00 CLT Feasibility Study DCR 9/26/2024 12/31/2024

C2271 16 Colas Construction $230,680.73 Powell CO #16 DCR 10/1/2024 12/31/2024

C2857 9 Bremik Construction $61,512.00 

Adding to scope of work for additional drains in the 

unit bathrooms on floors 2 and 3 at the Troutdale 

Project.

DCR 10/1/2024 12/29/2025

C3168 1
Carbonell Cleaning 

Solutions
$10,548.50 

Landscaping at Eliot Square and Maple Mallory; 

amended to extend contract
Property Management 10/2/2024 10/30/2024

C3304 2
Baldwin General 

Contracting Inc
$31,198.97 

Sequoia square envelope rehab PCO #5 

Add Window Check Rails, Tempering, FAV's, ADA 

Windows & Material Cost Increase

DCR 10/2/2024 10/31/2025

C3218 2
Village Resiliency 

Project
$-   adding language re: selling work product T&OD 10/8/2024 12/31/2024

C2878 1
Carbonell Cleaning 

Solutions
$-   

On-Call Maintenance Repair Services; amended to 

extend contract
Property Management 10/9/2024 11/30/2025

C3239 1
Carbonell Cleaning 

Solutions
$9,828.00 

Landscaping at Medallion & Williams; amended to 

extend contract
Property Management 10/9/2024 10/8/2025

C2880 2 Allied Systems NW $-   
On-Call Maintenance Repair Services; amended to 

extend contract
Property Management 10/16/2024 11/30/2025

C2919 21 Walsh Construction Co. $392,480.00 Fairfield Design-Build CO #14 DCR 10/18/2024 12/31/2025

C3271 1 Gordon & Rees LLP $-   
Legal Representation of Home Forward; amended to 

add time
Executive 10/18/2024 12/31/2024

C3368 1 Rosecity Builders $-   On-call painting services; amended to update rates IFS 10/21/2024 5/31/2027

C2418 6
Forensic Building 

Consultants
$4,500.00 

Sequoia square Additional Services Provided 

Permitting Plans and Design Details Temporary 

stairs and landing plan code updates

DCR 10/22/2024 9/2/2025

C3373 1

immigrant Refugee 

Community Organization 

(IRCO)

$121,303.50 

Permanent Supportive Housing support services for 

20 units at The Ellington; amended to expand scope 

and add funds

Community Services 10/23/2024 6/30/2025

C3363 1

QEDLAB Qualified 

Envelope Diagnostics, 

Inc.

$-   
Peter Paulson window testing extending contract 

date
DCR 10/24/2024 8/30/2025

C2964 9 Bora Architecture Inc $74,833.00 

Added services for the Peaceful Villa project: 

Excessive permitting comments, three code 

appeals, extended time line June - October, review 

of GC clarifications and exclusions and engineering 

of retaining wall for PBOT permit.

DCR 10/28/2024 3/31/2027

C3233 2 Epic Land Solutions $-   
Resident Relocation at Peaceful Villa; amended to 

extend contract
DCR 10/28/2024 1/31/2025

C3314 1

Hollywood Senior Center 

DBA The Community for 

Positive Aging

$10,000.00 
Resident relocation assistance for the Fairfield 

remodel; amended to add funds
DCR 10/28/2024 2/28/2025

C2965 5 LMC, Inc. $642,496.00 
Additional pre-con, including muck out and 

abatement (locks in DB wages)
DCR 10/31/2024 3/31/2025

C2857 10 Bremik Construction $59,703.00 Additional scope DCR 11/6/2024 12/29/2025

C3304 3
Baldwin General 

Contracting Inc
$133,486.16 

Sequoia Square PCO #7 

 Temp Stairs and Related Engineering - Bldg's A-D
DCR 11/6/2024 10/31/2025

C2777 2
Carbonell Cleaning 

Solutions
$67,653.60 

Landscaping at Stark Manor, Madrona Place, Fir 

Acres, Eastwood Court, and Alderwood; amended to 

extend contract

Property Management 11/14/2024 12/31/2025

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

99



C3275 1
Neighborhood 

Partnerships Inc.
$-   Resident engagement project; amended to add time Executive 11/14/2024 2/28/2025

C3469 1

Colliers International 

Valuation & Advisory 

Services, LLC

$500.00 
Increase appraisal scope to include additional 

valuation method Goose Hollow Lofts
DCR 11/14/2024 4/30/2025

C3227 5 Walsh Construction Co. $80,708.00 
Peter Paulson Replacing of exterior gypsum with 

new Denz Glass. 
Asset Mgmt 11/19/2024 12/31/2025

C3252 1
Melody Martinez 

Consulting LLC
$-   

Design and facilitate a series of Listening Sessions 

with prioritized stakeholders to inform policy 

development; amended to add time

Executive 11/19/2024 5/30/2025

C2969 3 NW Enforcement $25,380.00 Security at NMW; amended to extend contract IFSS 11/22/2024 12/31/2025

C3229 1
Freedom Security 

Solutions
$429,240.00 

24/7 Security at NWT; amended to extend contract; 

**next amendment needs to go to BOC**
Property Management 11/22/2024 9/30/2025

Subtotal $2,587,065.46 30

Contract # Amend # Contractor Contract Amount Description Dept. Execution Date Expiration Date

Subtotal $0.00 0

Total $5,359,166.33 73

OTHER AGREEMENTS (Revenue contracts, 3rd Party contracts, MOU's, IGA's)

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

100



Estimated Contract 

Amount
Description Dept. Solicitation Period

$42 million Group 8 DCR In Progress

$1.650 million A&E for N. Maryland DCR Spring 2025

$13.2 million CM/GC for N. Maryland DCR Spring 2025

TBD Townhouse Terrace Construction Project      DCR Late 2025

TBD Slavin Court Construction Project DCR Late 2025

$1.5 million CHSP Housekeeping & Personal Care
Community 

Services
TBD

 $1 million Rosenbaum Plaza Plumbing Repairs Phase 2/3 DCR TBD

Procurement & Contracts Department

FUTURE FORMAL PROCUREMENTS

 Look Ahead - December 2024 

Home Forward Board of Commissioners 
December 2024

101


	01-Public Notice
	02-Community Partners Memo-Zoom
	03-AGENDA
	04-BOC Agenda 2024
	BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
	DECEMBER 17, 2024, 5:30 PM
	AGENDA
	INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	MEETING MINUTES
	BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	REPORTS AND RESOLUTIONS
	THE NEXT MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
	The Board Work Sessions are quarterly with the next meeting on Thursday, February 6, 2025 at Noon. The next Board of Commissioners meeting will be Tuesday, January 21, 2025 at 5:30 PM.
	Executive Session
	AdjourN

	05-AMINUTES
	05-BoC Meeting Minutes 2024-11-19
	06-CONSENT CALENDAR
	07-24-12-01 Group 8 Design-Build Contract Authorization
	08-24-12-02 Celilo Court Construction Funding Increase
	09-RESOLUTIONS
	10-24-12-03 Cesar Purchase Memo and Resolution
	11_Placeholder for Resolution 24-12-04
	12-Placeholder for Resolution 24-12-05
	13-Placeholder for Resolution 24-12-06
	14-STAFF REPORTS
	15-Monthly BOC Report - Dec 2024
	16-LookAhead - Dec 2024
	11a-FY25 Budget Report_final draft.pdf
	Table of Contents
	Management Discussion
	General Overview
	Budget Principles
	Budget Summary
	Impact on Funding Flow
	Staffing Update
	Risks and Opportunities
	Conclusion

	Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs) by Funding Source
	FY25
	FY24
	Increase / (Decrease)
	Budget
	Budget
	Operating Statement & Summary of Funding Flow
	Operating Statement
	Funding Flow Analysis

	Line-Item Analysis & Assumptions
	Revenue
	Dwelling Rental | $34.7 million
	Non-Dwelling Rental | $1.5 million
	HUD Subsidies - Housing Assistance | $157.5 million
	HUD Subsidies - Administrative Fees | $16.3 million
	HUD Subsidies - Public Housing | $5.0 million
	Development Fee Revenue | $15.3 million
	State, Local & Other Grants | $38.7 million
	Other Revenue | $17.1 million

	Expense
	Housing Assistance Payments | $199.4 million
	Personnel Expense | $45.9 million
	Other Administrative Expenses | $17.7 million
	Other Tenant Services Expenses | $4.8 million
	Other Maintenance Expenses | $9.2 million
	Utilities | $6.6 million
	Depreciation | $6.0 million
	General | $4.2 million

	Net Other Income (Expense)
	Investment Income | $933 thousand


	Accrued Developer Fee Revenue
	Project
	(In thousands)
	Operating and Administrative Segment Review
	FY25 Operating Statement by Operating Group*
	FY25 Funding Flow Analysis by Operating Group*
	FY25 Staffing Summary by Operating Group
	Budget Commentary – Rent Assistance
	Rent Assistance Key Assumptions
	Rent Assistance Major Programs/Initiatives/Activities and Estimated Budget Impact

	Budget Commentary – Public Housing Portfolio
	Public Housing Key Assumptions
	Public Housing Major Revenue and Expense Items
	Public Housing Funding Required for Current Agency Activities

	Budget Commentary – Affordable Housing Portfolio
	Affordable Housing Key Assumptions
	Affordable Housing Major Programs/Initiatives/Activities and Estimated Budget Impact
	Affordable Housing Major Revenue and Expense Items
	Affordable Housing Funding Required for Current Agency Activities

	Budget Commentary – Asset Management
	Asset Management Key Assumptions
	Asset Management Funding Required for Current Agency Activities

	Budget Commentary – Property Management
	Property Management Key Assumptions
	Property Management Major Programs/Initiatives/Activities and Estimated Budget Impact
	Property Management Major Revenue and Expense Items
	Property Management Funding Required for Current Agency Activities

	Budget Commentary – Safety
	Safety Key Assumptions
	Safety Major Programs/Initiatives/Activities and Estimated Budget Impact
	Safety Major Revenue and Expense Items
	Safety Funding Required for Current Agency Activities

	Budget Commentary – Integrated Facilities Services and Sustainability
	Integrated Facilities Services Key Assumptions
	Integrated Facilities Services Major Programs/Initiatives/Activities and Estimated Budget Impact
	Integrated Facilities Services Major Revenue and Expense Items
	Integrated Facilities Services Funding Required for Current Agency Activities

	Budget Commentary – Development
	Development Key Assumptions
	Development Major Programs/Initiatives/Activities and Estimated Budget Impact
	Development Major Revenue and Expense Items
	Development Funding Required for Current Agency Activities

	Budget Commentary – Community Services
	Community Services Key Assumptions
	Community Services Major Programs/Initiatives/Activities and Estimated Budget Impact
	Community Services Major Revenue and Expense Items
	Community Services Funding Required for Current Agency Activities

	Budget Commentary – Administration
	Administration Key Assumptions
	Administration Major Programs/Initiatives/Activities and Estimated Budget Impact
	Administration Major Revenue and Expense Items

	Budget Commentary – Real Estate Finance
	Real Estate Finance Major Revenue and Expense Items


	Increase/
	FY25 Budget
	FY24 Budget
	Summary Budget Data
	(Decrease)
	Average Households Served
	Total HAP Expenses
	Average Voucher Cost
	Program Cost/Expenses
	Increase/
	FY25 Budget
	FY24 Budget
	Summary Budget Data
	(Decrease)
	Public Housing Portfolio Operating Subsidy Assumptions
	FY25
	FY24
	Budget
	Budget
	Increase/
	FY25 Budget
	FY24 Budget
	Summary Budget Data
	(Decrease)
	Increase/
	FY25 Budget
	FY24 Budget
	Summary Budget Data
	(Decrease)
	Portfolio Type
	Units
	Properties
	Increase/
	FY25 Budget
	FY24 Budget
	Summary Budget Data
	(Decrease)
	Properties
	Subsidy Type*
	Increase/
	Summary Budget Data
	 FY25 Budget 
	 FY24 Budget 
	(Decrease)
	Increase/
	FY25 Budget
	FY24 Budget
	Summary Budget Data
	(Decrease)
	Increase/
	FY25 Budget
	FY24 Budget
	Summary Budget Data
	(Decrease)
	Developer Fees Accrued and Received FY25 (amounts in millions)
	Developer Fee Cash to be Received
	Accrued Developer Fee Revenue
	Project Budget
	Project
	Dekum Court
	Total
	FY26
	FY25
	FY24
	FY22
	(In millions)
	PCC/Killingsworth
	FY26
	FY25
	FY24
	Total
	(In millions)
	Peaceful Villa
	FY28
	FY27
	FY26
	FY25
	Total
	(In millions)
	Troutdale Housing
	FY26
	FY25
	FY24
	Total
	(In millions)
	Estimated Project
	Project Budget
	Projects
	Completion
	(In millions)
	Developer Fees (in millions)
	Total Developer Fee
	FY25
	Projects
	Increase/
	FY25 Budget
	FY24 Budget
	Summary Budget Data
	(Decrease)
	Increase/
	FY25 Budget
	FY24 Budget
	Summary Budget Data
	(Decrease)
	Increase/
	FY25 Budget
	FY24 Budget
	Summary Budget Data
	(Decrease)
	Attachments
	Summary of Moving to Work Initiative Funds
	FY25 Estimated Households Served by Category
	FY25 Estimated Rent Assistance Households Served by Category
	Subsidy Proration Trends
	Cumulative Change in HCV Funding vs. Cumulative Change in Metro Area Apartment Rent
	FTE Change Comparison Schedule
	Acronym Key
	FY25 Operating Statement by Operating Group
	FY25 Funding Flow Analysis by Operating Group*

	FY25
	FY24 
	First
	Description
	Initiative
	Budget
	Budget
	Year
	Subsidy Proration Trends 
	CY 25 (Est)
	CY 24
	CY 23
	CY 22
	CY 21
	CY 20
	CY 19
	CY 18
	CY 17
	Actual Funding Year
	FY25
	FY24
	FY23
	FY22
	FY 2021
	FY 2019 12/31 YE
	FY 2019
	FY 2018
	FY 2017
	Home Forward Budget Year
	Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs) by Funding Source
	Increase / (Decrease)
	FY25
	FY24
	Budget
	Budget
	FY25 Summary of FTE Changes
	FTE
	Department
	Title
	Mid-Year FTE Changes for FY24
	FTE
	Department
	Title

	12a-24-12-05_Insurance Renewal_Attachment_2025 Insurance overview.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2




